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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

GENERAL

The Company is a provider of specialty financial services to individuals in the
United States, United Kingdom and Sweden.  The Company offers secured non-
recourse loans, commonly referred to as pawn loans, to individuals through its
lending operations.  The pawn loan portfolio generates finance and service
charges revenue.  As an alternative to a pawn loan, the Company offers small
consumer cash advances in selected lending locations and on behalf of a third-
party financial institution in other locations.  A related activity of the lending
operations is the disposition of merchandise, primarily collateral from unre-
deemed pawn loans.  The Company also provides check cashing services through
its franchised and company-owned Mr. Payroll® check cashing centers. 

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s lending operations consisted of
468 lending units, including 396 owned units and 13 franchised units in 18 states
in the United States, 48 units in the United Kingdom and 11 units in Sweden.
The foreign operations consist primarily of jewelry-only lending units.  The num-
ber of owned lending units declined by 11 during the three years ended December
31, 2002, as the Company acquired 9 operating units, established 4 locations and
combined or closed 24 locations.  In addition, 6 franchise units were opened and
4 were closed.  As of December 31, 2002, Mr. Payroll operated 129 franchised and
6 company-owned check cashing centers in 21 states.  

In September 2001, the Company announced plans to exit the rent-to-own
business in order to focus on its core business of lending activities.  In June 2002,
the Company sold the remaining assets of its “Rent-A-Tire” rent-to-own business.
Accordingly, the net operating results, net assets and net cash flows of this business
segment have been reported as “Discontinued Operations” in the consolidated
Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition is based upon the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its esti-
mates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, merchan-
dise held for disposition, allowance for losses on advances, long-lived and intangi-
ble assets, income taxes, contingencies and litigation. Management bases its esti-
mates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 

Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect its
more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidat-
ed financial statements. 

Finance and service charges revenue recognition.  The Company accrues
finance and service charges revenue on all pawn loans that the Company deems
collectible based on historical loan redemption statistics. Pawn loans written dur-
ing each calendar month are aggregated and tracked for performance. Loan trans-
actions terminate upon redemption, renewal or forfeiture of the loan collateral.
The gathering of this data allows the Company to analyze the characteristics of its
outstanding pawn loan portfolio and estimate the probability of collection of
finance and service charges. In the event the future performance of the loan port-
folio differs significantly (positively or negatively) from expectations, revenue for
the next reporting period would be likewise affected.

Due to the short-term nature of pawn loans, the Company is able to quickly
identify performance trends.  For 2002, $117.3 million, or 99.2%, of recorded
finance and service charges represented cash collected from customers and the
remaining $0.9 million, or 0.8%, represented an increase in the finance and ser-
vice charges receivable during the year.  Assuming a 10% decline in expected per-
formance rates and collection of finance and service charges, the receivable and
revenue would decrease by $2.1 million.  Some or all of this amount would be
recovered through the disposition of the related forfeited loan collateral.

Merchandise held for disposition.  Merchandise held for disposition consists pri-
marily of forfeited collateral from pawn loans not repaid. The carrying value of the
forfeited collateral is stated at the lower of cost (cash amount loaned) or market.
Management provides an allowance for valuation and shrinkage based on its eval-
uation of the merchandise. Because pawn loans are made without the borrower’s
personal liability, the Company does not investigate the creditworthiness of the
borrower, but evaluates the pledged personal property as a basis for its lending
decision. The amount the Company is willing to finance is typically based on a
percentage of the pledged personal property’s estimated disposition value. The
sources for the Company’s determination of the estimated disposition value are
numerous and include the Company’s automated product valuation system as well
as catalogues, “blue books,” newspapers and previous disposition experience with
similar items. The Company performs a physical count of its merchandise in each
location on a cyclical basis and reviews the composition of inventory by category
and age in order to assess the adequacy of the allowance, which was $1.4 million
at December 31, 2002.  Adverse changes in the disposition value of the Company’s
merchandise may result in the need to increase the valuation allowance. 

Allowance for losses on small consumer cash advances.  The Company main-
tains an allowance for losses on cash advances (including fees and interest) at a
level estimated to be adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the outstanding
combined cash advance portfolio. The Company’s cash advance product primarily
services a customer base of non-prime borrowers. These advances are typically
offered for a term of 7 to 45 days. Cash advances written during each calendar
month are aggregated and tracked to develop a performance history. The
Company stratifies the outstanding portfolio by age, delinquency and stage of col-
lection when assessing the adequacy of the allowance for losses.  Collection history
is utilized to develop expected loss rates which are used for the establishment of
the allowance.  Increased defaults and credit losses may occur during a national or
regional economic downturn, or could occur for other reasons, resulting in the
need to increase the allowance.  Unlike pawn loans, cash advances are unsecured,
and the performance of the portfolio depends on the Company’s ability to manage
the default rate and collect on defaulted loans.  The Company believes it effective-
ly manages the risks inherent in this product by using a credit scoring system and
by closely monitoring the performance of the portfolio.  Any remaining unpaid
balance of a cash advance is charged off once it becomes 60 days past due, or soon-
er if deemed uncollectible. 

Valuation of long-lived and intangible assets.  The Company assesses the
impairment of long-lived and intangible assets whenever events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors con-
sidered important which could trigger an impairment review include significant
underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future cash flows,
significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
the overall business, and significant negative industry trends. When management
determines that the carrying value of long-lived and intangible assets may not be
recoverable, an impairment is measured based on the excess of the assets’ carrying
value over the estimated fair value. 

Income taxes.  As part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Company is required to estimate income taxes in each of the juris-
dictions in which it operates. This process involves estimating the actual current
tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences in recognition of
income for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included within the Company’s consolidated bal-



13

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued

ance sheets. Management must then assess the likelihood that the deferred tax
assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent it believes
that recovery is not likely, it must establish a valuation allowance. An expense, or
benefit, must be included within the tax provision in the statement of operations
for any increase, or decrease, in the valuation allowance for a given period. 

Management judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes, the deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded
against net deferred tax assets. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance
of $7.7 million as of December 31, 2002, due to uncertainties related to the ability
to utilize a portion of the deferred tax assets resulting from capital losses. The valu-
ation allowance is based on Company estimates of capital gains expected to be rec-
ognized during the period over which the capital losses may be used to offset such
gains. In the event that the Company determined that it would not be able to
realize all or part of its net deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the
deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period that such determina-
tion was made. Likewise, should the Company determine that it would be able to
realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, an
adjustment to the deferred tax assets would increase, or decrease, income in the
period that such determination was made. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended 2002 Compared to Year Ended 2001

Consolidated Net Revenue. Consolidated net revenue increased $22.2 mil-
lion, or 10.8%, to $227.1 million during 2002 from $204.9 million during 2001.
The following table sets forth 2002 and 2001 net revenue by operating 
segment ($ in millions):

2002 2001 Increase (decrease)

Domestic lending $ 194.9 $ 177.0 $ 17.9 10.1%
Foreign lending 28.7 24.5 4.2 17.1%

Total lending 223.6 201.5 22.1 11.0%

Check cashing 3.5 3.4 0.1 2.9%

Consolidated $227.1 $ 204.9 $ 22.2 10.8%

The components of net revenue are finance and service charges from pawn
loans, which increased $4.4 million; net revenue from the disposition of mer-
chandise, which increased $4.3 million; cash advance fees, which increased $13.1
million; and check cashing royalties and fees, which increased $0.4 million.
Management believes that the trend of higher cash advance fees will continue
during 2003 as a result of the expected continuation of high demand for the prod-
uct and due to the significantly higher balance of cash advances at year end 2002
compared to the prior year.  Management expects the continuation of moderate
growth in domestic lending finance and service charges in 2003 as customers use
both the cash advance and pawn loan to satisfy their capital needs.

Finance and service charges. The following is a summary of finance and service
charges related to pawn loans by operating segment for 2002 and 2001 ($ in millions):

2002 2001 Increase (decrease)

Domestic lending $ 94.5 $ 92.7 $ 1.8 1.9%
Foreign lending 23.8 21.2 2.6 12.3%

Total $ 118.3 $ 113.9 $ 4.4 3.9%

Variations in finance and service charges on pawn loans are caused by changes
in the average balance of pawn loans outstanding, the annualized yield of the pawn
loan portfolio and the effects of translation of foreign currency amounts into United
States dollars.  The following table identifies the impact of underlying factors on the
total change in finance and service charges on pawn loans ($ in millions): 

Average Total Before
Balance Loan Foreign Foreign

Outstanding Yield Translation Translation Total

Domestic lending $ (1.4) $ 3.2 $ 1.8 $ — $ 1.8
Foreign lending 0.9 0.6 1.5 1.1 2.6

Total $ (0.5) $ 3.8 $ 3.3 $ 1.1 $ 4.4

Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, the consoli-
dated average balance of pawn loans outstanding was 0.2% higher during 2002
than 2001.  On a segment basis, the average balances of pawn loans were 1.5%
lower and 3.5% higher for the domestic and foreign lending operations, respective-
ly.  The decrease in the average balance of domestic pawn loans outstanding was
driven by a 2.9% decline in the average number of pawn loans outstanding during
2002, which was partially offset by a 1.4% increase in the average amount per
loan.  The lower average domestic loan balance outstanding is a reflection of the
lower balances early in the year due to larger than usual per capita tax refunds
believed to have been received by pawn customers during the first quarter of 2002.
Management believes that this was also partly attributable to some customers
choosing to satisfy their short-term borrowing needs through a cash advance
instead of through a pawn loan.  Strong pawn loan demand during the last two
quarters of 2002 and the non-recurrence of the Internal Revenue Service’s
advance tax refunds distributed in August and September of 2001 have con-
tributed to reversing the trend of lower year-over-year loan balances.  Domestic
pawn loan balances at December 31, 2002, were $1.9 million, or 2.4% higher than
at December 31, 2001.  The average balance of pawn loans outstanding denomi-
nated in local currencies increased 7.6% and decreased 2.7% in the United
Kingdom and Sweden, respectively.  Foreign loan demand was mixed as the aver-
age number of pawn loans outstanding in the United Kingdom and Sweden
increased 5.0% and decreased 6.6%, respectively.  Average amounts per loan were
higher for both the United Kingdom and Sweden by 2.5% and 4.2%, respectively.

The consolidated annualized loan yield, which represents the blended result
derived from the distinctive loan yields realized from operations in the three coun-
tries, excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency translation was 100.4% in
2002, compared to 97.9% in 2001.  There was an increase in the domestic annual-
ized loan yield to 126.0% for 2002, compared to 121.8% for 2001.  Improved per-
formance of the pawn loan portfolio, including higher redemption rates and a
slightly higher concentration of extended or renewed loans in the portfolio, con-
tributed to the higher domestic yield.  The blended yield on average foreign pawn
loans outstanding increased to 54.3% in 2002, compared to 52.6% in 2001.  The
increase in the blended foreign yield was caused by a combination of higher loan
redemption rates and higher yield on the disposition of unredeemed collateral at
auction.

Favorable currency translation adjustments contributed $1.1 million to the
increase in foreign source finance and service charges in 2002 as compared to
2001, as the British pound and Swedish kronor were stronger relative to the
United States dollar.  The weighted average exchange rates used for translating
earnings into dollars for the pound and kronor were 5.1% and 6.3% higher, respec-
tively, during 2002 as compared to 2001.

Net revenue from the disposition of merchandise. Net revenue from the dispo-
sition of merchandise represents the proceeds received from the disposition of
merchandise in excess of the cost of merchandise sold.  The following table sum-
marizes, by operating segment, the change in the proceeds from the disposition
of merchandise and the related net margin for 2002 as compared to 2001 ($ in
millions):

Increase (decrease)

Proceeds from % Net %
Disposition Change Margin Change

Domestic lending $ 11.4 5.1% $  3.0 3.8%
Foreign lending 2.7 27.2% 1.3 52.7%

Total $  14.1 6.1% $  4.3 5.4%
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Proceeds from the disposition of merchandise increased $14.1 million, or
6.1%, in 2002, largely due to an increase in the disposition of scrap gold jewelry.
In addition, disposition of merchandise at the Company’s United Kingdom loca-
tions continues to grow as customers are introduced to this method of disposition.
The consolidated merchandise turnover rate increased to 2.9 times during 2002
from 2.6 times during 2001.  The margin on disposition of merchandise decreased
slightly to 34.7% in 2002 from 34.9% in 2001.  Excluding the effect of the disposi-
tion of scrap jewelry, the margin on disposition of merchandise increased to 37.0%
in 2002 from 36.5% in 2001 due to a lower average cost of merchandise sold.  The
margin on disposition of scrap jewelry was 16.9% in 2002 compared to 11.7% in
2001, due to the prevailing higher market price of gold.  

Cash advance fees. Cash advance fees increased $13.1 million to $19.1 million in
2002 as compared to $6.0 million in 2001.  The increase resulted from higher
demand for the small consumer cash advance product, which generated higher
outstanding balances.  The Company introduced the small consumer cash advance
product to its broad group of locations in 2000.  The product was available in 391
domestic lending units at December 31, 2002, including 309 units that offered the
product on behalf of a third-party financial institution (the “Bank”) that under-
writes the advance to the customer and pays the Company a fee for its administra-
tive services.  Cash advance fees include revenue from the cash advance portfolio
owned by the Company and fees for administrative services performed for the
Bank.  (Although small consumer cash advance transactions may take the form of
loans or deferred check deposit transactions, the transactions are referred to
throughout this discussion as “cash advances” for convenience.)

The amount of cash advances written increased $74.7 million to $123.7 mil-
lion in 2002 from $49.0 million in 2001.  Included in the amount of cash advances
written in 2002 and 2001 were $106.1 million and $37.4 million, respectively,
extended to customers by the Bank.  The average amount per cash advance
increased to $284 from $261.  The combined Company and Bank portfolio of
small consumer cash advances generated $21.7 million in revenue during 2002,
compared to $7.9 million in 2001.  The outstanding combined portfolio of cash
advances increased $5.3 million to $12.1 million at December 31, 2002, from $6.8
million at December 31, 2001.  Included in these amounts are $4.0 million and
$2.4 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively, that are included in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets.  An allowance for losses of $1.7 million and $0.7 mil-
lion has been provided in the consolidated financial statements as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, which offsets the outstanding cash advance
amounts.  The net balance is recorded in “Other receivables and prepaid expenses”
on the consolidated balance sheets.

During January of 2003, the Company announced its intent to change third-
party providers of this product, and the Bank announced that it would be exiting
the small consumer cash advance business.  The new third-party providers will be
state-chartered financial institutions. The transition will occur over the first four
months of 2003. Management does not anticipate that the change in providers of
the cash advance product will have a material adverse impact on consumers’
demand for the product, the Company’s ability to offer the product through its
lending locations, or on the Company’s financial condition. See further discussion
at Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Check cashing royalties and fees.  Check cashing revenue for Mr. Payroll
increased $0.1 million, or 2.9%, in 2002, while check cashing fees for the United
Kingdom increased $0.3 million, or 25.8%, for the same period. 

Operations and Administration Expenses.  Consolidated operations and
administration expenses as a percentage of net revenue were 73.7% in 2002 com-
pared to 75.8% in 2001.  These expenses increased $12.0 million, or 7.8%, in
2002 compared to 2001.  Domestic lending expenses increased $9.7 million,
largely as a result of higher health insurance costs and higher incentive expenses
associated with the improvement in operating results.  Foreign lending operations
expenses increased $2.3 million, primarily due to an increase in the number of
locations and the increased focus on merchandise disposition in the United
Kingdom.  Mr. Payroll’s expenses remained unchanged.

Cash Advance Loss Provision.  The Company maintains an allowance for
losses on cash advances at a level projected to be adequate to absorb credit losses
inherent in the outstanding combined cash advance portfolio.  The cash advance
loss provision is utilized to increase the allowance carried against the outstanding
cash advance portfolio.  The cash advance loss provision for domestic lending
operations increased $4.4 million to $6.7 million in 2002, as compared to $2.3
million in 2001 due to the significant increase in the size of the portfolio.  The
loss provision as a percentage of cash advance fees decreased to 35.0% in the cur-
rent year from 38.4% in the prior year.  See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Depreciation and Amortization.  Depreciation and amortization expense as
a percentage of net revenue was 6.6% in 2002 compared to 8.1% in 2001.  Total
depreciation and amortization expense decreased $1.7 million, or 10.0%.  Effective
January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). Under
SFAS 142, the Company ceased amortizing all goodwill and other intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives.  See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.  A $3.1 million decline in amortization due to the adop-
tion of SFAS 142 was partially offset by a $0.8 million increase in depreciation
expense associated with the completion of the reconstruction of the Company’s
corporate headquarters late in 2001, after it was severely damaged by a tornado in
March 2000, and a $0.6 million increase in depreciation from other additions. 

Interest Expense.  Net interest expense as a percentage of net revenue
declined to 3.9% in 2002 from 4.7% in 2001.  The amount decreased a net $0.7
million, or 6.8%, due to the effects of a 7.1% reduction in the Company’s average
debt balance.  The average amount of debt outstanding during 2002 was $164.0
million, as compared to $176.4 million during 2001.  The effective blended net
borrowing cost was 5.5% in 2002 and 2001.  Improved operating performance in
the United States and United Kingdom and the sale of Rent-A-Tire were factors
contributing to the reduction in average debt balance.  

Loss from Derivative Valuation Fluctuations.  The adjustments to the
estimated fair value of interest rate cap agreements during 2002 resulted in a loss
of $0.2 million, as compared to a loss of $0.6 million in 2001.  See Note 6 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes.  The Company’s effective tax rate for 2002 was 36.0% as com-
pared to 37.7% for 2001.  Excluding goodwill amortization and the related tax
effects, the Company’s comparable consolidated effective tax rate was 34.7% for
2001.  The Company’s consolidated effective tax rate for 2002 was affected by an
increase in the effective foreign tax rate and by a higher proportionate increase in
domestic income, which is subject to a higher marginal tax rate.

Income from Continuing Operations.  Income from continuing operations
was $18.5 million and $12.7 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively.  Diluted
income from continuing operations per share was $0.75 for 2002, as compared to
$0.51 for 2001.  

Year Ended 2001 Compared to Year Ended 2000 

Consolidated Net Revenue. Consolidated net revenue increased $10.0 
million, or 5.1%, to $204.9 million during 2001 from $194.9 million during 2000.
The following table sets forth 2001 and 2000 net revenue by operating 
segment ($ in millions):

2001 2000 Increase (decrease)

Domestic lending $177.0 $ 167.5 $ 9.5 5.7%
Foreign lending 24.5 24.2 0.3 1.2%

Total lending 201.5 191.7 9.8 5.1%

Check cashing 3.4 3.2 0.2 6.3%

Consolidated $204.9 $ 194.9 $ 10.0 5.1%

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued
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The Company’s domestic lending operations generated the majority of the
increase in consolidated net revenue.  Higher disposition of merchandise com-
bined with the continued improvement in the margin on disposition of mer-
chandise and the expansion of the Company’s small consumer cash advance
product accounted for the higher net revenue.

Finance and service charges from pawn loans decreased $0.9 million; net
revenue from the disposition of merchandise increased $5.8 million; cash
advance fees increased $4.8 million; and check cashing royalties and fees
increased $0.3 million.

Finance and service charges. The following is a summary of finance and 
service charges related to pawn loans by operating segment for 2001 and 2000 
($ in millions):

2001 2000 Increase (decrease)

Domestic lending $ 92.7 $ 92.0 $ 0.7 0.8%
Foreign lending 21.2 22.8 (1.6) (7.0)%

Total $113.9 $ 114.8 $ (0.9) (0.8)%

The following table identifies the impact of underlying factors on the total
change in finance and service charges ($ in millions):

Average Total Before
Balance Loan Foreign Foreign

Outstanding Yield Translation Translation Total

Domestic lending $ 1.9 $ (1.2) $ 0.7 $ — $ 0.7
Foreign lending (1.4) 1.5 0.1 (1.7) (1.6)

Total $ 0.5 $ 0.3 $ 0.8 $ (1.7) $ (0.9)

Excluding the negative impact of foreign currency translation, the consolidated
average balance of pawn loans outstanding was 1.1% lower during 2001 than 2000.
On a segment basis, the average balances of pawn loans were 2.0% higher and 6.1%
lower for the domestic and foreign lending operations, respectively.  The increase in
the average balance of domestic pawn loans outstanding was driven by a 1.4%
growth in the average number of pawn loans outstanding during 2001 coupled with
a 0.7% increase in the average amount per loan.  Management believes that the
increase in the number of domestic pawn loans was partly attributed to adverse
changes in the U.S. economy that were conducive to an increase in loan demand.
Denominated in local currencies, the average balance of pawn loans outstanding
decreased 7.6% and 3.8% in the United Kingdom and Sweden, respectively.  Foreign
loan demand continued to be weaker as the average number of pawn loans outstand-
ing in both the United Kingdom and Sweden declined 5.3% and 6.6%, respectively.
Average amounts per loan were 2.4% lower in the United Kingdom and 3.1% high-
er in Sweden.

Excluding the negative effects of foreign currency translation, the 
consolidated annualized loan yield was 96.5% in 2001, compared to 94.8% in
2000.  Although there was a slight decrease in the domestic annualized loan yield
to 121.8% for 2001, compared to 123.3% for 2000, the blended yield on average
foreign pawn loans outstanding increased to 52.4% in 2001 compared to 49.0% in
2000.  All of the increase in the blended yield occurred in the United Kingdom
and was caused by a combination of higher loan redemption rates and higher yield
on the disposition of unredeemed collateral at auction.

Finance and service charges declined $1.7 million in 2001 due to negative
foreign currency translation adjustments resulting from the continued strengthen-
ing of the United States dollar against both foreign currencies.  The weighted
average exchange rates used for translating earnings into dollars for the British
pound and Swedish kronor were 4.8% and 13.0% lower, respectively, during 2001
compared to 2000. 

Net revenue from the disposition of merchandise. The combination of
increased proceeds and higher margins resulted in a $5.8 million, or 7.7%, 
increase in net revenue from the disposition of merchandise.  The following 
table summarizes, by operating segment, the change in the proceeds from the 
disposition of merchandise and the related net margin for 2001 as compared to
2000 ($ in millions):

Increase (decrease)

Proceeds from % Net %
Disposition Change Margin Change

Domestic lending $ 4.3 2.0% $ 4.0 5.3%        
Foreign lending 1.0 11.6% 1.8 250.5%

Total $  5.3 2.4% $  5.8 7.7%

Proceeds from the disposition of merchandise increased $5.3 million, or 2.4%,
in 2001, largely due to a slight increase in the volume of items sold in the domestic
lending locations and an increase in the disposition of scrap gold jewelry.  In addi-
tion, the United Kingdom continued to emphasize the disposition of merchandise
in their locations.  The consolidated merchandise turnover rate increased to 2.6
times during 2001 from 2.5 times during 2000, and the margin on disposition of
merchandise increased to 34.8% in 2001 from 33.2% in 2000.  Excluding the effect
of the disposition of scrap jewelry, the margin on disposition of merchandise
increased to 36.5% in 2001 from 35.3% in 2000 due to a lower average cost of mer-
chandise sold.  The margin on disposition of scrap jewelry was 11.7% in 2001 com-
pared to 2.6% in 2000, due to a lower average cost per ounce for domestic disposi-
tions.  

Cash advance fees.  Cash advance fees increased $4.8 million to $6.0 million in
2001 as compared to $1.2 million in 2000.  The increase resulted from higher
demand for the small consumer cash advance product, which generated higher
outstanding balances.  The Company introduced the small consumer cash
advance product to its broad group of locations in 2000.  The product was avail-
able in 386 domestic lending units at the end of 2001, including 315 units that
offered the product on behalf of the Bank.  

The amount of cash advances written increased $38.9 million to $49.0 mil-
lion in 2001 from $10.1 million in 2000.  Included in the amount of cash advances
written in 2001 and 2000 were $37.4 million and $1.4 million, respectively, extend-
ed to customers by the Bank.  The average amount per cash advance increased to
$261 from $187.  The combined Company and Bank portfolio of small consumer
cash advances generated $7.9 million in revenue during 2001 compared to $1.3
million in 2000.  The outstanding combined portfolio of cash advances increased
$5.2 million to $6.8 million at December 31, 2001, from $1.6 million at December
31, 2000.  Included in these amounts are $2.4 million and $1.0 million for 2001
and 2000, respectively, that are included in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets.  An allowance for losses of $0.7 million and $0.2 million has been provided
in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, which offsets the outstanding cash advance amounts.  The net balance is
recorded in “Other receivables and prepaid expenses” on the consolidated balance
sheets.  

Check cashing royalties and fees.  Check cashing revenue for Mr. Payroll
increased $0.2 million, or 7.0%, in 2001, while check cashing fees for the United
Kingdom increased $0.1 million, or 13.5%, for the same period.

Operations and Administration Expenses.  Consolidated operations and
administration expenses as a percentage of net revenue were 75.8% in 2001 com-
pared to 76.1% in 2000.  These expenses increased $7.0 million, or 4.7%, in 2001
as compared to 2000.  Domestic lending expenses increased $7.0 million, largely
as a result of higher personnel costs and expenses associated with the advertising
and promotion of the cash advance product.  Foreign lending operations expenses
increased $0.1 million primarily due to an increase in the number of locations in
the United Kingdom.  Mr. Payroll’s expenses decreased $0.1 million in 2001 com-
pared to 2000, primarily as a result of lower losses on returned checks.

Cash Advance Loss Provision.  The cash advance loss provision for domes-
tic lending operations increased $1.8 million to $2.3 million in 2001 as compared
to $0.5 million in 2000 due to the increase in the size of the portfolio.  Loss pro-
vision as a percentage of cash advance fees decreased slightly to 38.4% in 2001
from 38.8% in 2000.  
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Depreciation and Amortization.  Depreciation and amortization expense as a
percentage of net revenue was 8.1% in 2001 compared to 8.4% in 2000.  Total depre-
ciation and amortization expense increased $0.3 million, or 1.7%. Depreciation of
additional equipment and kiosks for Mr. Payroll and depreciation for additions to
computer systems in the United Kingdom accounted for the increase.

Interest Expense.  Net interest expense as a percentage of net revenue
declined to 4.7% in 2001 from 6.7% in 2000.  The amount decreased a net $3.5
million, or 26.5%, due to the effect of lower blended borrowing costs and a 7.1%
reduction in the Company’s average debt balance.  The effective blended borrow-
ing cost decreased to 5.5% in 2001 from 6.9% in 2000.  The average amount of
debt outstanding decreased during 2001 to $176.4 million from $189.9 million
during 2000.  A lower average pawn loan balance during the year, improved oper-
ating performance in the United Kingdom and the receipt of insurance proceeds
in late 2000 from claims resulting from tornado damage to the corporate head-
quarters in March 2000 were factors contributing to the lower debt balance.  

Loss from Derivative Valuation Fluctuations. Effective January 1, 2001,
the Company implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and its corre-
sponding amendments under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities—
An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.”  The adjustments to the estimated
fair value of interest rate cap agreements during 2001 resulted in a loss of $0.6
million.  In 2000, the amortization of the cost of interest rate cap agreements was
included in interest expense.

Other Items.  During 2000, the Company recorded a $9.7 million gain from
the settlement of the insurance claim resulting from the severe damage to its cor-
porate headquarters in Fort Worth, Texas, by a tornado in March 2000.  Income
tax expense of $3.4 million related to the gain is included in the provision for
income taxes.

In 2000, the Company’s share of the net losses of innoVentry Corp. was $15.6
million, and the Company’s gain resulting from innoVentry’s issuance of its own
stock was $0.1 million.  No additional gains or losses have been recorded since
June 30, 2000.  The Company has accounted for its 19.3% voting interest in
innoVentry, that has a carrying value of zero, by the cost method since February
2001.  innoVentry ceased business operations in September 2001 due to its inabili-
ty to raise additional financing.  Since the Company’s investment in and advances
to innoVentry were written down to zero in 2000, innoVentry’s decision to cease
operations had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or
results of operations.  See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes.  The Company’s effective tax rate for 2001 was 37.7%.  The
Company’s consolidated effective tax rate was affected in 2000 by the valuation
allowance provided for the deferred tax assets arising from the Company’s equity
in the losses of innoVentry.  Including the effect of the valuation allowance pro-
vided, the Company recognized no net deferred tax benefits in 2000 from its equi-
ty in the losses of innoVentry.  Excluding the items related to the Company’s
investment in innoVentry and their related tax effects, the Company’s consolidat-
ed effective tax rate was 38.3% for 2000.  Excluding goodwill amortization and
the related tax effects, the Company’s comparable consolidated effective tax rates
were 34.7% and 37.0% for 2001 and 2000, respectively.  

Income from Continuing Operations.  Income from continuing operations
was $12.7 million and $0.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively. Diluted
income from continuing operations per share was $0.51 for 2001, compared to 
$0.03 for 2000.  Excluding various non-operating unusual items, adjusted diluted
income from continuing operations per share increased to $0.51 for 2001 from 
$0.38 for 2000.  

Supplemental information regarding the effects of the unusual items is as fol-
lows (in millions, except per share amounts):

2001 2000

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 20.4 $ 10.8

Less unusual items —

Gain from disposal of assets — (9.7)

Equity in loss of unconsolidated subsidiary — 15.6

Gain from issuance of subsidiary’s stock — (0.1)

Income from continuing operations before

unusual items and income taxes $ 20.4 $ 16.6

Income from continuing operations after tax 

excluding unusual items $ 12.7 $ 9.9

Income from continuing operations after tax

excluding unusual items per share – Diluted $ 0.51 $ 0.38

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s cash flows and other key indicators of liquidity are summarized as
follows ($ in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Operating activities cash flows $ 47.1 $ 39.2 $ 33.4

Investing activities cash flows: 
Pawn loans and cash advances (10.0) (3.2) 2.1
Other investing activities (15.0) (32.3) 4.5

Financing activities cash flows (28.2) 1.0 (32.6)

Working capital $ 179.5 $ 174.6 $ 190.3
Current ratio 5.1x 4.5x 6.9x
Debt/EBITDA1 2.8x 3.6x 3.7x
Merchandise turnover 2.9x 2.6x 2.5x

1EBITDA is defined as income from operations before depreciation and amortization.

Cash flows from operating activities.  Net cash provided by operating
activities of continuing operations was $47.1 million for 2002.

Cash flows from investing activities.  An increase in the Company’s
investment in pawn loans and cash advances during 2002 required $10.0 million
of cash.  Additionally, the Company invested $11.3 million in purchases of prop-
erty and equipment in 2002 for property improvements, the remodeling of select-
ed operating units and additions to computer systems for lending operations.
Approximately $1.1 million of this amount was related to the reconstruction of
the Company’s corporate headquarters.  During 2002, the Company acquired four
lending locations for $3.7 million.

Management anticipates that capital expenditures for 2003 will be approxi-
mately $14 to 18 million.  These expenditures will relate to the establishment of
new lending locations, remodeling of selected operating units and enhancements
to information systems.  In addition, the Company may add 20 to 30 new lending
locations, through the acquisition of existing pawnshop locations and the estab-
lishment of both new pawnshop and new cash advance locations.

Cash flows from financing activities.  The Company received proceeds of
$42.5 million from the issuance of long-term note obligations and used cash to
make payments of $67.5 million on bank lines of credit and other debt obliga-
tions, $1.2 million for dividends and $2.4 million for the purchase of treasury
shares.  On July 25, 2002, the Company announced that its Board of Directors
authorized management to purchase up to one million shares of its common stock
in the open market and terminated the open market purchase authorization
established in 2000.  During 2002, the Company purchased 109,000 shares for an
aggregate amount of $0.9 million under the 2002 authorization and 176,700
shares for an aggregate amount of $1.3 million under the 2000 authorization.
Additional purchases may be made from time to time (in the open market), and
it is expected that funding will come from operating cash flow.
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In 2002, the Company issued $42.5 million of 7.20% senior unsecured notes,
due August 2009.  The notes are payable in five equal annual payments beginning
August 2005.  The Company also refinanced its U.S. line of credit with a $90 mil-
lion senior unsecured revolving line of credit maturing August 2005.  Interest on
the line of credit is charged, at the Company’s option, at either LIBOR (1.4375%
at December 31, 2002) plus a margin or at the Agent’s base rate.  The margin on
the line of credit varies from 1.25% to 2.50%, depending on the Company’s ratio
of indebtedness to cash flow as defined in the agreement.  The Company pays a
fee of .375% per annum on the unused portion.  Net proceeds received under
these agreements were used to reduce existing indebtedness and will be utilized for
general corporate purposes.  The weighted average interest rate (including margin)
on the U.S. line of credit at December 31, 2002 was 4.19%.  The Company had
an interest rate cap agreement, totaling $20 million, that expired in January 2003
that limited the maximum LIBOR rate to 7%, and has an interest rate cap agree-
ment totaling $30 million that expires in February 2004 that limits the maximum
LIBOR rate to 5.5%.  At December 31, 2002, $44.5 million was outstanding on
the Company’s $90 million U.S. line of credit.

The Company extended its multi-currency line of credit for one year to
April 30, 2004, and reduced the maximum amount to £15 million (approximately
$24.1 million at December 31, 2002) from £20 million (approximately $32.2 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002).  The Company’s foreign subsidiaries are co-borrowers
on this multi-currency line of credit.  Funds may be drawn in British pounds, bear-
ing interest at the Bank’s cost of funds plus a margin of 60 basis points.  Funds up
to the equivalent of £15 million may be drawn in Swedish kronor, bearing interest
at the Bank’s cost of funds plus a margin of 65 basis points.  In the aggregate, the
British pound and Swedish kronor drawings may not exceed the equivalent of £15
million.  The Company pays a fee of 0.25% per annum on the unused portion of
this line of credit.  As of December 31, 2002, amounts outstanding under this line
of credit were £4.6 million (approximately $7.3 million) and SEK 38 million
(approximately $4.4 million).

The  Company extended its SEK 30 million line of credit (approximately
$3.5 million as of December 31, 2002) with a commercial bank to mature on May
30, 2003. Interest on this line of credit is charged at the Bank’s base funding rate
plus 1%. The Company pays a commitment fee of 0.25% per annum on the total
amount of this line of credit. There were no amounts outstanding on this line of
credit as of December 31, 2002. The Company has an interest rate cap agreement
for SEK 100 million (approximately $11.5 million as of December 31, 2002) that
expires in August 2003 and limits the Stockholm Interbank Offering Rate to 5.5%.

The weighted average interest rates on the British pound and Swedish kronor
borrowings at December 31, 2002, were 5.19% and 4.77%, respectively.

The credit agreements and the senior unsecured notes require the Company
to maintain certain financial ratios. The Company is in compliance with all
covenants and other requirements set forth in its debt agreements. A significant
decline in demand for the Company’s services may cause the Company to reduce
its planned level of capital expenditures and lower its working capital needs in
order to maintain compliance with the financial ratios in those agreements. A vio-
lation of the credit agreements could increase the Company’s borrowing costs and
could even adversely affect the Company’s ability to renew existing credit facilities
or obtain access to new credit facilities in the future. The Company does not
anticipate a significant decline in demand for its services and has historically been
successful in maintaining compliance with and renewing its debt agreements. 

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at
December 31, 2002, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on its liq-
uidity and cash flow in future periods, assuming that the company’s lines of credit
are not renewed or extended in future periods (in millions): 

Other
Lines long-term Non-cancelable leases 

of credit debt for continuing operations Total

2003 $ — $ 12.6 $ 19.3 $ 31.9
2004 11.7 8.3 15.2 35.2
2005 44.5 16.8 10.2 71.5
2006 — 16.8 7.4 24.2
2007 — 16.8 4.7 21.5
Thereafter — 21.2 15.0 36.2

Total $ 56.2 $ 92.5 $ 71.8 $220.5

Management believes that borrowings available under the credit facilities,
cash generated from operations and current working capital of $179.5 million
should be sufficient to meet the Company’s anticipated future capital require-
ments.  

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE 
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risks relating to the Company’s operations result primarily from changes
in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and gold prices.  The Company does not
engage in speculative or leveraged transactions, nor does it hold or issue financial
instruments for trading purposes.

Interest Rate Risk.  Management’s objective is to minimize the cost of bor-
rowing through an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate debt.  Derivative
financial instruments, such as interest rate cap agreements, are used for the pur-
pose of managing fluctuating interest rate exposures that exist from ongoing busi-
ness operations.  After considering the effectiveness, if any, of the interest rate
cap agreements, the Company had net variable rate borrowings outstanding of
$56.2 million and $112.6 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
If prevailing interest rates were to increase 100 basis points over the rates at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and the variable rate borrowings out-
standing remained constant, the Company’s interest expense would increase by
$0.6 million and $1.1 million, and net income after taxes would decrease by $0.4
million and $0.7 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.  If prevailing interest
rates were to decrease 100 basis points from the rates at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, the combined fair values of the Company’s outstanding fixed
rate plus capped rate debt ($96.5 million and $62.3 million, respectively) would
increase by $3.1 million and $1.8 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Foreign Exchange Risk.  The Company is subject to the risk of unexpected
changes in foreign currency exchange rates by virtue of its operations in the
United Kingdom and Sweden.  Foreign assets, liabilities and earnings are translat-
ed into U.S. dollars for consolidation into the Company’s financial statements.
As a result of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company has
recorded cumulative other comprehensive losses of $2.7 million and $10.8 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  A hypothetical 10% decline
in the exchange rates of the British pound and the Swedish kronor at December
31, 2002 and 2001, would have resulted in additional other comprehensive losses
of $7.2 million and $5.7 million, respectively.

Net income from foreign operations during 2002, 2001 and 2000 translated
to $6.6 million, $5.4 million and $4.9 million, respectively.  A hypothetical 10%
decline in the weighted average exchange rates for each of the foreign currencies
during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, would have decreased
net income after taxes by $0.7 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

At this time, the Company does not use derivative instruments to manage
exchange rate risk of net investments in or earnings of its foreign operations.  In
the event the Company was to temporarily transfer funds between currencies, it
would concurrently enter into short-term currency swaps to eliminate the risk of
currency fluctuations.  No foreign currency swaps were outstanding at December
31, 2002 or 2001.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued
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Gold Price Risk.  The Company periodically uses forward sale contracts with
a major bullion bank to sell a portion of the expected amount of fine gold pro-
duced in the normal course of business from its liquidation of forfeited gold mer-
chandise.  A significant decrease in the price of gold would result in a reduction
of proceeds from the disposition of scrap jewelry to the extent that amounts sold
were in excess of the amount of contracted forward sales.  In addition, a signifi-
cant and sustained decline in the price of gold would negatively impact the value
of goods pledged as collateral by customers and identified as scrap jewelry by the
Company.  In this instance, most customers would be willing to add additional
items of value to their pledge in order to obtain the desired loan amount.
However, those customers unable or unwilling to provide additional collateral
would receive lower loan amounts, possibly resulting in a lower balance of pawn
loans outstanding for the Company.  

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See discussion in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING 
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT MAY 
AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Annual Report to Shareholders, including management’s discussion and
analysis, contains statements that are forward-looking, as that term is defined by
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 or by the Securities and
Exchange Commission in its rules.  The Company intends that all forward-looking
statements be subject to the safe harbors created by these laws and rules.  When
used in this Annual Report to Shareholders, the words “believes,” “estimates,”
“plans,” “expects,” “anticipates” and similar expressions as they relate to the
Company or its management are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
All forward-looking statements are based on current expectations regarding impor-
tant risk factors.  These risks and uncertainties are beyond the ability of the
Company to control, and, in many cases, the Company cannot predict all of the
risks and uncertainties that could cause its actual results to differ materially from
those expressed in the forward-looking statements.  Accordingly, actual results may
differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements, and such
statements should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any
other person that the results expressed in the statements will be achieved.
Important risk factors that could cause results or events to differ from current
expectations are described below.  These factors are not intended to be an all-
encompassing list of risks and uncertainties that may affect the operations, perfor-
mance, development and results of the Company’s business.

RISK FACTORS

• Changes in customer demand for the Company’s products and specialty
financial services. Although the Company’s products and services are a sta-
ple of its customer base, a significant change in the needs or wants of cus-
tomers and the Company’s failure to adapt to those needs or wants could
result in a significant decrease in the revenues of the Company.

• The actions of third parties who offer products and services at the
Company’s locations. The Company offers products and services to its cus-
tomers made available by various third parties.  A failure of a third-party
provider to provide its product or service or to maintain the quality and con-
sistency of its product or service could result in a loss of customers and a
related loss in revenue from those products or services.

• The ability of the Company to open and acquire new operating units in
accordance with its plans. The Company’s expansion program is subject to
numerous factors which cannot be predicted or controlled, such as the avail-
ability of attractive acquisition candidates or sites with suitable terms and
general economic conditions.  

• Changes in competition from various sources such as banks, savings and
loans, short-term consumer lenders and other similar financial services
entities, as well as retail businesses that offer products and services
offered by the Company. The Company encounters significant competi-
tion in connection with its lending and merchandise disposition operations
from other pawnshops and other forms of financial institutions such as con-
sumer finance companies.  Significant increases in these competitive influ-
ences could adversely affect the Company’s operations through a decrease in
the number of cash advances and pawn loans originated, resulting in lower
levels of earning assets in these categories.

• Changes in economic conditions. While the credit risk for most of the
Company’s consumer lending is mitigated by the collateralized nature of
pawn lending, a protracted deterioration in the economic environment could
adversely affect the Company’s operations through a deterioration in perfor-
mance of its pawn loan or cash advance portfolios, or by reducing consumer
demand for the purchase of pre-owned merchandise.  

• Real estate market fluctuations. A significant rise in real estate prices
could result in an increase in the cost of store leases as the Company opens
new locations and renews leases for existing locations.  

• Interest rate fluctuations. Interest rates offered by lending institutions
could rise, which would, in turn, increase the cost of borrowing.  

• Changes in the capital markets. The Company regularly accesses the debt
capital markets to refinance existing debt obligations and to obtain capital to
finance growth.  Efficient access to these markets is critical to the Company’s
ongoing financial success; however, the Company’s future access to the debt
capital markets could become restricted should the Company experience
deterioration of its cash flows, balance sheet quality or overall business or
industry prospects.

• Changes in tax and other laws and governmental rules and regulations
applicable to the specialty financial services industry. The Company’s
lending activities are subject to extensive regulation and supervision under
various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations.  The
Company faces a risk that new laws and regulations could be enacted that
could have a negative impact on the Company’s domestic or international
lending activities.  

• Other risks indicated in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

• Other factors discussed under Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued



(Dollars in thousands–December 31)

SUMMARY
The Company acquired 9 operating units, established 4 locations and combined or closed 24 locations, for a net decline of 11 company-owned locations for
the three years ended December 31, 2002. In addition, 6 franchise units were opened and 4 units were closed for a net increase of 2 franchise locations. In
September 2001, the Company announced plans to exit the rent-to-own business. Therefore, the net operating results, net assets and net cash flows 
of Rent-A-Tire, Inc. have been reported as “Discontinued Operations” in the accompanying financial statements. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Selected consolidated and operations data for continuing operations for the three years ended December 31, 2002, are presented below:

2002 2001 2000
REVENUE

Finance and service charges $ 118,248 $ 113,863 $ 114,711
Proceeds from disposition of merchandise 245,943 231,879 226,538
Cash advance fees 19,084 5,993 1,230
Check cashing royalties and fees 4,568 4,194 3,881

TOTAL REVENUE 387,843 355,929 346,360
Costs of Revenue

Disposed merchandise 160,711 150,991 151,407
NET REVENUE $ 227,132 $ 204,938 $ 194,953 
Other Data

Consolidated Operations:
Net revenue contribution by source —

Finance and service charges 52.1% 55.6% 58.8%
Margin on disposition of merchandise 37.5% 39.5% 38.6%
Cash advance fees 8.4% 2.9% 0.6%
Check cashing royalties and fees 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Expenses as a percentage of net revenue —
Operations and administration 73.7% 75.8% 76.1%
Cash advance loss provision 2.9% 1.1% 0.2%
Depreciation and amortization 6.6% 8.1% 8.4%
Interest, net 3.9% 4.7% 6.7%

Income from operations as a percentage of total revenue 9.8% 8.6% 8.6%
Lending Operations:

Pawn loans
Annualized yield on pawn loans 99.5% 97.9% 94.8%
Total amount of pawn loans written $ 408,467 $ 403,724 $ 408,091
Average pawn loan balance outstanding $ 118,871 $ 116,368 $ 121,045
Average pawn loan balance per average location in operation $ 260 $ 253 $ 261
Average pawn loan amount at year-end (not in thousands) $ 107 $ 99 $ 101
Margin on disposition of merchandise as a percentage

of proceeds from disposition of merchandise 34.7% 34.9% 33.2%
Average annualized merchandise turnover 2.9x 2.6x 2.5x
Average merchandise held for disposition per average location $ 123 $ 128 $ 128

Small consumer cash advances
Total amount of cash advances written (a) $ 123,705 $ 49,003 $ 10,066 
Number of cash advances written (not in thousands) (a) 435,160 188,102 53,686 
Average amount per cash advance (not in thousands) (a) $ 284 $ 261 $ 187 
Average number of locations offering cash advances (not in thousands) (a) 390 356 123 
Combined advances outstanding (a) $ 12,139 $ 6,763 $ 1,636
Cash advances outstanding per location at year-end (a) $ 31 $ 18 $ 5
Cash advances outstanding before allowance for losses (b) $ 3,958 $ 2,406 $ 1,054 

Owned locations in operation at end of year 455 460 463
Additional franchise locations at end of year 13 13 16
Total locations at end of year 468 473 479
Average number of owned locations in operation 457 460 464

Check Cashing Operations: (c)
Check cashing royalties and fees $ 3,563 $ 3,395 $ 3,177

Franchised and owned check cashing centers —
Face amount of checks cashed $ 1,041,434 $ 976,132 $ 910,239
Gross fees collected $ 14,708 $ 13,528 $ 12,400
Fees as percentage of checks cashed 1.4% 1.4% 1.4%
Average check cashed (not in thousands) $ 349 $ 337 $ 327
Centers in operation at end of year 135 134 132
Average centers in operation for the year 135 135 136

(a) Includes advances made by the Company and advances made by a third-party financial institution.

(b) Amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(c) Information presented in this section relates to Mr. Payroll.  “Check cashing royalties and fees” on the consolidated statements of operations also includes United Kingdom check cashing fees.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Continued

Domestic Lending Operations

(Dollars in thousands)

The following table sets forth selected financial data for the Company’s domestic lending operations for the three years ended December 31, 2002:

2002 2001 2000
REVENUE

Finance and service charges $ 94,458 $ 92,687 $ 91,950 
Proceeds from disposition of merchandise 233,396 222,013 217,701 
Cash advance fees 19,084 5,993 1,230 

TOTAL REVENUE 346,938 320,693 310,881
Costs of Revenue

Disposed merchandise 152,071 143,684 143,300 
NET REVENUE $ 194,867 $ 177,009 $ 167,581  
Other Data

Net revenue contribution by source —
Finance and service charges 48.5% 52.4% 54.9%
Margin on disposition of merchandise 41.7% 44.3% 44.4%
Cash advance fees 9.8% 3.3% 0.7%

Expenses as a percentage of net revenue —
Operations and administration 76.6% 78.9% 79.2%
Cash advance loss provision 3.4% 1.3% 0.3%
Depreciation and amortization 6.1% 7.7% 8.2%
Interest, net 2.6% 2.5% 3.7%

Income from operations as a percentage of total revenue 7.8% 6.7% 6.7%

Annualized yield on pawn loans 126.0% 121.8% 123.3%
Total amount of pawn loans written $ 302,911 $ 308,365 $ 301,058
Average pawn loan balance outstanding $ 74,969 $ 76,102 $ 74,579 
Average pawn loan balance per average location in operation $ 187 $ 187 $ 181
Average pawn loan amount at year-end (not in thousands) $ 84 $ 82 $ 83 
Margin on disposition of merchandise as a percentage

of proceeds from disposition of merchandise 34.8% 35.3% 34.2%
Average annualized merchandise turnover 2.9x 2.6x 2.5x
Average merchandise held for disposition per average location $ 130 $ 138 $ 137

Owned locations in operation —
Beginning of year 404 410 413 

Acquired 2 2 — 
Start-ups — 2 1 
Combined or closed (10) (10) (4)

End of year 396 404 410 
Additional franchise locations at end of year 13 13 16 
Total locations at end of year 409 417 426

Average number of owned locations in operation 400 406 411 
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Foreign Lending Operations

(Dollars in thousands)

The following table sets forth selected combined financial data in U.S. dollars for Harvey & Thompson, Ltd. and Svensk Pantbelåning for the three years
ended December 31, 2002, using the following currency exchange rates:

2002 2001 2000
Harvey & Thompson, Ltd. (British pound per U.S. dollar) —

Balance sheet data – end of period rate 0.6212 0.6868 0.6697 
Statements of operations data – weighted average rate for the period 0.6608 0.6948 0.6613 

Svensk Pantbelåning (Swedish kronor per U.S. dollar) —
Balance sheet data – end of period rate 8.6806 10.4425 9.4068 
Statements of operations data – weighted average rate for the period 9.6963 10.3427 9.1493 

REVENUE
Finance and service charges $ 23,790 $ 21,176 $ 22,761 
Proceeds from disposition of merchandise 12,547 9,866 8,837 
Check cashing fees 1,005 799 704

TOTAL REVENUE 37,342 31,841 32,302 
Costs of Revenue

Disposed merchandise 8,640 7,307 8,107 
NET REVENUE $ 28,702 $ 24,534 $ 24,195  
Other Data

Net revenue contribution by source —
Finance and service charges 82.9% 86.3% 94.1%
Margin on disposition of merchandise 13.6% 10.4% 3.0%
Check cashing fees 3.5% 3.3% 2.9%

Expenses as a percentage of net revenue —
Operations and administration 56.0% 56.1% 56.3%
Depreciation and amortization 8.6% 8.6% 8.1%
Interest, net 1.9% 2.9% 5.7

Income from operations as a percentage of total revenue 27.2% 27.2% 26.7%

Annualized yield on pawn loans 54.2% 52.6% 49.0%
Total amount of pawn loans written $ 105,556 $ 95,359 $ 107,033
Average pawn loan balance outstanding $ 43,902 $ 40,266 $ 46,466 
Average pawn loan balance per average location in operation $ 770 $ 746 $ 877 
Average pawn loan amount at year-end (not in thousands) $ 191 $ 161 $ 168 
Margin on disposition of merchandise as a percentage

of proceeds from disposition of merchandise 31.1% 25.9% 8.3%
Average annualized merchandise turnover 2.2x 2.5x 2.5x
Average merchandise held for disposition per average location $ 69 $ 54 $ 62 

Owned locations in operation —
Beginning of year 56 53 53 

Acquired 2 3 — 
Start-ups 1 — —

End of year 59 56 53 
Average number of owned locations in operation 57 54 53 
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(In thousands, except share data)

Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31

2002 2001

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,951 $ 6,394
Pawn loans 127,388 116,590
Merchandise held for disposition, net 54,444 63,392
Finance and service charges receivable 21,096 19,396
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 10,881 7,992
Deferred tax assets 5,392 7,795
Net current assets of discontinued operations — 3,008

Total current assets 223,152 224,567
Property and equipment, net 67,254 68,450
Goodwill 79,833 76,686 
Other assets 6,239 5,743 
Deferred tax assets — 1,846
Net non-current assets of discontinued operations — 5,598

Total assets $ 376,478 $ 382,890

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 24,297 $ 27,939
Customer deposits 4,050 3,961
Reserve for disposal of discontinued operations 623 7,953
Income taxes currently payable 2,086 1,123
Current portion of long-term debt 12,571 9,020

Total current liabilities 43,627 49,996

Deferred tax liabilities 4,385 1,701
Long-term debt 136,131 162,762

Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.10 par value per share, 80,000,000 shares

authorized; 30,235,164 shares issued in 2002 and 2001 3,024 3,024
Paid in surplus 127,819 127,821
Retained earnings 113,278 95,192
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,718) (10,820)
Notes receivable – stockholders (5,864) (5,890)

235,539 209,327
Less – shares held in treasury, at cost (5,939,794 in 2002
and 5,643,318 in 2001) (43,204) (40,896)

Total stockholders’ equity 192,335 168,431

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 376,478 $ 382,890
See notes to consolidated financial statements.



(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations — Years Ended December 31

2002 2001 2000

REVENUE

Finance and service charges $ 118,248 $ 113,863 $ 114,711 
Proceeds from disposition of merchandise 245,943 231,879 226,538 
Cash advance fees 19,084 5,993 1,230
Check cashing royalties and fees 4,568 4,194 3,881 

TOTAL REVENUE 387,843 355,929 346,360 

COSTS OF REVENUE

Disposed merchandise 160,711 150,991 151,407

NET REVENUE 227,132 204,938 194,953 

OPERATING EXPENSES

Lending operations 136,458 128,346 123,233
Cash advance loss provision 6,676 2,301 477
Check cashing operations 1,440 1,335 1,258
Administration 29,559 25,722 23,912 
Depreciation and amortization 14,959 16,629 16,358 

Total operating expenses 189,092 174,333 165,238 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 38,040 30,605 29,715 
Interest expense, net 8,961 9,619 13,095 
Loss from derivative valuation fluctuations 177 557 —
Gain from disposal of assets — — (9,729)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated subsidiary — — 15,653
Gain from issuance of subsidiary’s stock — — ( 136)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 28,902 20,429 10,832
Provision for income taxes 10,393 7,704 10,131

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 18,509 12,725 701 
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 800 ( 18,631) ( 2,431)

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 19,309 $ ( 5,906) $ (1,730)

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic —

Income from continuing operations $ 0.76 $ 0.52 $ 0.03 
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations $ 0.03 $ (0.76) $ (0.10)
Net income (loss) $ 0.79 $ (0.24) $ (0.07) 

Diluted —
Income from continuing operations $ 0.75 $ 0.51 $ 0.03 
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations $ 0.03 $ (0.75) $ (0.09)
Net income (loss) $ 0.78 $ (0.24) $ (0.07) 

Weighted average shares:
Basic 24,424 24,643 25,461
Diluted 24,841 24,963 25,817

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years Ended December 31

2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 19,309 $ ( 5,906) $ (1,730) 
Less: Gain(loss) from discontinued operations 800 ( 18,631) ( 2,431)
Income from continuing operations 18,509 12,725 701 
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to 

net cash provided by continuing operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 14,959 16,629 16,358 
Cash advance loss provision 6,676 2,301 477 
Loss from derivative valuation fluctuations 177 557 —
Gain from disposal of assets — — (9,729)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated subsidiary — — 15,653
Gain from issuance of subsidiary’s stock — — (136)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —

Merchandise held for disposition 9,713 (4,437) 5,323 
Finance and service charges receivable (890) 277 513
Other receivables and prepaid expenses (4,427) (1,205) 458
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,252) 13,975 (5,178) 
Customer deposits, net 89 23 (200) 
Current income taxes 923 3,752 5,993
Deferred taxes, net 6,632 (5,374) 3,163 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
of continuing operations 47,109 39,223 33,396 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Pawn loans forfeited and transferred to merchandise 

held for disposition 132,590 138,255 135,525
Pawn loans and cash advances repaid or renewed 307,219 279,343 283,314 
Pawn loans made, including loans renewed, and cash advances

made or purchased (449,834) ( 420,807) ( 416,711)

Net (increase) decrease in pawn loans and cash advances (10,025) (3,209) 2,128 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (3,713) (1,279) —
Purchases of property and equipment (11,327) ( 31,829) ( 16,219)
Proceeds from property insurance claims — 790 20,685

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities 
of continuing operations (25,065) (35,527) 6,594

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (payments) borrowings under bank lines of credit (58,261) 12,289 (25,912)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term notes payable 42,500 — — 
Proceeds from capital lease obligations — — 2,115 
Payments on notes payable, capital leases and other obligations (9,220) ( 9,817) ( 5,571)
Decrease in notes receivable – stockholders 288 240 845
Net proceeds from reissuance of treasury shares 42 120 3,419 
Treasury shares purchased (2,362) ( 581) ( 6,170)
Dividends paid (1,223) ( 1,228) ( 1,275)

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 
of continuing operations (28,236) 1,023 (32,549)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 604 (18) ( 100)

Cash (used) provided by continuing operations (5,588) 4,701 7,341 
Cash provided (used) by discontinued operations 3,145 ( 2,933) ( 8,901)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,394 4,626 6,186

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3,951 $ 6,394 $ 4,626

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Noncash investing and financing activities:

Loans to stockholders for exercise of stock options $ 1 $ 24 $ 481
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — Years Ended December 31

(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated Notes
Other Receivable—

Common Stock Paid in Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive Stock- Treasury Stock
Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Income (Loss) Income (Loss) holders Shares Amount

Balance at 
December 31, 1999 30,235,164 $ 3,024 $ 127,350 $ 105,331 $ (3,989) $ (5,820) 5,055,170 $(38,956)

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss (1,730) $ (1,730) 
Other comprehensive 

loss — Foreign 
currency translation 
adjustments (4,498) (4,498)

Comprehensive loss $ (6,228) 

Dividends declared —
$0.05 per share (1,275)

Treasury shares purchased 1,129,223 (6,170)

Treasury shares reissued (756) (607,075) 4,656 

Tax benefit from exercise
of option shares 1,226 

Change in notes
receivable — stockholders 65

Balance at
December 31, 2000 30,235,164 3,024 127,820  102,326 (8,487) (5,755) 5,577,318 (40,470)

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss (5,906) $ (5,906)
Other comprehensive 

loss — Foreign 
currency translation 
adjustments (2,333) (2,333)

Comprehensive loss $ (8,239)

Dividends declared —
$0.05 per share (1,228)

Treasury shares purchased 87,500 (581)

Treasury shares reissued (7) (21,500) 155 

Tax benefit from exercise
of option shares 8 

Change in notes
receivable — stockholders (135) 

Balance at
December 31, 2001 30,235,164 3,024 127,821 95,192 (10,820) (5,890) 5,643,318 (40,896)

Comprehensive income:
Net income 19,309 $ 19,309
Other comprehensive 

income —  Foreign 
currency translation 
adjustments 8,102 8,102

Comprehensive income $ 27,411

Dividends declared —
$0.05 per share (1,223)

Treasury shares purchased 303,851 (2,362)

Treasury shares reissued (11) (7,375) 54 

Tax benefit from exercise
of option shares 9 

Change in notes
receivable — stockholders 26

Balance at
December 31, 2002 30,235,164 $ 3,024 $127,819 $ 113,278 $ (2,718) $ (5,864) 5,939,794 $(43,204)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1.  Nature of the Company
Cash America International, Inc. (“the Company”) is a provider of specialty finan-
cial services to individuals in the United States, United Kingdom and Sweden.
The Company offers secured non-recourse loans, commonly referred to as pawn
loans, to individuals through its lending operations.  As an alternative to a pawn
loan, the Company offers small consumer cash advances in selected lending loca-
tions and on behalf of a third-party financial institution in other locations.  A
related activity of the lending operations is the disposition of merchandise, primar-
ily collateral from unredeemed pawn loans.  As of December 31, 2002, the
Company’s lending operations consisted of 468 lending units, including 396 owned
units and 13 franchised units in the United States, and 59 owned units in Europe.

The Company also provides check cashing services through its franchised
and company-owned Mr. Payroll® check cashing centers.  As of December 31,
2002, Mr. Payroll operated 129 franchised and 6 company-owned check cashing
centers in 21 states.   

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of presentation • The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company’s majority owned subsidiaries.  All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

In September 2001, the Company announced plans to exit the rent-to-own
business in order to focus on its core business of lending activities.  In June 2002,
the Company sold the remaining assets of its rent-to-own business.  The consoli-
dated financial statements of the Company have been reclassified to reflect the
disposition of the rental business segment. See Note 3. 

In March 1999, the Company disposed of a majority interest in innoVentry
Corp. (“innoVentry”), its automated check cashing machine business. The
Company deconsolidated innoVentry and began using the equity method of
accounting for its investment in and its share of the results of innoVentry’s opera-
tions. In February 2001, innoVentry sold additional voting preferred stock, reduc-
ing the Company’s ownership and voting interest to 19.3%. Thereafter, the
Company began using the cost method of accounting for its investment in
innoVentry. innoVentry ceased business operations in September 2001 due to its
inability to raise additional financing. Since the Company’s investment in and
advances to innoVentry were written down to zero in 2000, innoVentry’s decision
to cease operations had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position
or results of operations. See Note 4. 

Use of estimates •  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial state-
ments and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
periods. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates and judg-
ments, including those related to revenue recognition, merchandise held for dis-
position, allowance for losses on advances, long-lived and intangible assets,
income taxes, contingencies and litigation. Management bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for mak-
ing judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Foreign currency translation • The functional currencies for the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries are the local currencies.  The assets and liabilities of those
subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at
each balance sheet date, and resulting adjustments are accumulated in other
comprehensive income (loss) as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Revenue and expenses are translated at the monthly average exchange rates
occurring during each year.

Cash and cash equivalents • The Company considers cash on hand in oper-
ating locations, deposits in banks and short-term marketable securities with orig-
inal maturities of 90 days or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue recognition • Pawn loans (“loans”) are made on the pledge of tangible
personal property.  The Company accrues finance and service charges revenue on
all loans that the Company deems collectible, based on historical loan redemption
statistics.  For loans not repaid, the carrying value of the forfeited collateral (“mer-
chandise held for disposition”) is stated at the lower of cost (cash amount loaned)
or market.  Revenue is recognized at the time that merchandise is sold.  Interim
customer payments for layaway sales are recorded as customer deposits and subse-
quently recognized as revenue during the period in which final payment is received.

Small consumer cash advances (“cash advances”) provide customers with
cash in exchange for a promissory note or other repayment agreement supported
by that customer’s personal check for the aggregate amount of the cash advanced
plus a service fee. The Company holds the check for the predetermined period of
the cash advance, typically less than 17 days. To repay the cash advance, cus-
tomers may redeem their check by paying cash or they may allow the check to be
presented for collection.  The Company accrues fees and interest on cash advances
on a constant yield basis ratably over their terms.  For those locations that offer
small consumer cash advances from a third-party financial institution (the
“Bank”), the Company receives an administrative service fee for services provided
on the Bank’s behalf.  These fees are recorded in revenue when earned.

The Company records fees derived from its owned check cashing locations in
the period in which the service is provided.  Royalties derived from franchise loca-
tions are recorded on the accrual basis.

Allowance for losses on small consumer cash advances • In order to manage
its portfolio of small consumer cash advances effectively, the Company utilizes a
credit scoring system, monitors the performance of the portfolio and maintains an
allowance for losses.

The Company maintains an allowance for losses on cash advances (including
fees and interest) at a level estimated to be adequate to absorb credit losses inher-
ent in the outstanding combined cash advance portfolio.  The allowance offsets
the outstanding cash advance amounts in the consolidated balance sheets.  Cash
advances written during each calendar month are aggregated and tracked to devel-
op a performance history.  The Company stratifies the outstanding combined port-
folio by age, delinquency and stage of collection when assessing the adequacy of
the allowance for losses.  Recent collection history is utilized to develop expected
loss rates, which are used for the establishment of the allowance.  Increases in the
allowance are created by recording a cash advance allowance loss provision in the
consolidated statements of operations.  The Company charges off all cash
advances once they are 60 days past due, or sooner if deemed uncollectible.
Recoveries on losses previously charged to the allowance are credited to the
allowance when collected. See Note 5.

Merchandise held for disposition and cost of disposed merchandise •

Merchandise held for disposition includes merchandise acquired from unre-
deemed loans, merchandise purchased directly from the public and merchandise
purchased from vendors.  Merchandise held for disposition is stated at the lower
of cost (specific identification) or market.  The Company provides an allowance
for valuation and shrinkage based on management’s evaluation of the merchan-
dise.  The allowance deducted from the carrying value of merchandise held for
disposition amounted to $1,445,000 and $1,589,000 at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The cost of merchandise, computed on the specific identification basis, is
removed from merchandise held for disposition and recorded as a cost of revenue
at the time of sale. 

Property and equipment • Property and equipment is recorded at cost.
Depreciation expense is generally provided on a straight-line basis, using esti-
mated useful lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings and 2 to 15 years for equipment
and leasehold improvements.  The cost of property retired or sold and the relat-
ed accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts, and any resulting
gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations.

Software development costs • The Company develops computer software for
internal use.  Internal and external costs incurred for the development of com-
puter applications, as well as for upgrades and enhancements that result in addi-
tional functionality of the applications, are capitalized.  Internal and external
training and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred.  When an
application is placed in service, the Company begins amortizing the related capi-
talized software costs using the straight-line method and an estimated useful life
varying from 3 to 5 years.

Goodwill and other intangible assets • Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”)
was effective as of January 1, 2002, and, as a result, the Company discontinued the
amortization of goodwill as of that date. In lieu of amortization, the Company is
required to perform an annual impairment review of goodwill.  The Company
completed its initial and annual reviews during 2002. Based on the results of these
tests, management determined there was no impairment as of January 1, 2002, and
as of June 30, 2002.  See Note 7.

The Company amortizes intangible assets with an estimable life on a straight-
line basis over the expected periods of benefit, generally 5 to 10 years.  Accumulated
amortization of these intangible assets was $1,416,000 and $3,633,000 at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The costs of start-up activities and organization costs are charged to expense
as incurred.

Impairment of long-lived assets • An evaluation of the recoverability of
property and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization is per-
formed whenever the facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.  An impairment loss is recognized if the future undiscounted
cash flows associated with the asset are less than the asset’s corresponding carry-
ing value.  The amount of the impairment loss, if any, is the excess of the asset’s
carrying value over its estimated fair value.

Income taxes • The provision for income taxes is based on income before
income taxes as reported for financial statement purposes.  Deferred income
taxes are provided in accordance with the assets and liability method of account-
ing for income taxes in order to recognize the tax effects of temporary differences
between financial statement and income tax accounting.  Deferred federal
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries to the extent the Company intends to indefinitely reinvest such earn-
ings.

Hedging and derivatives activity • As a policy, the Company does not engage
in speculative or leveraged transactions, nor does it hold or issue financial instru-
ments for trading purposes. The Company does use derivative financial instru-
ments, such as interest rate cap agreements, for the purpose of managing interest
rate exposures that exist from ongoing business operations. On January 1, 2001,
the Company adopted SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), and its corresponding amendments under SFAS

138, and began presenting its interest rate cap agreements at fair value on the bal-
ance sheet. Changes in their fair value are recognized in earnings unless they
qualify as a hedge. Prior to 2001, the costs of the agreements were recognized as
adjustments to interest expense during the terms of the agreements and any bene-
fits received under the terms of the agreements were recognized in the periods of
the benefits. The Company may also periodically enter into forward sale contracts
with a major bullion bank to sell fine gold that is produced in the normal course
of business from the Company’s liquidation of forfeited gold merchandise. These
contracts are not accounted for as derivatives because they meet the criteria for
the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception in SFAS 133. In addition,
the Company may periodically transfer funds between currencies and may con-
currently enter into short-term currency swaps to eliminate the risk of currency
fluctuations. The Company did not enter into any short-term currency swaps dur-
ing 2002 or 2001.

Advertising costs • Costs of advertising are expensed at the time of first occur-
rence.  Advertising expense for continuing operations was $4,399,000,
$4,104,000 and $4,202,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Stock-based compensation • The Company accounts for its stock-based
employee compensation plans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”),
often referred to as the “intrinsic value” based method.  In October 1995, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”).  SFAS 123 encourages
expensing the fair value of employee stock options, but allows an entity to con-
tinue to account for stock-based compensation under APB 25 with disclosures of
the pro forma effect on net income had the fair value accounting provisions of
SFAS 123 been adopted.  In December 2002, SFAS 123 was amended by SFAS
No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—

amendment of FASB Statement No. 123”.  The Company has calculated the fair
value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and has
determined the pro forma impact on net income.  See Note 15.

Net income (loss) per share • Basic net income (loss) per share is computed
by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares out-
standing during the year.  Diluted net income (loss) per share is calculated by
giving effect to the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other con-
tracts to issue common shares were exercised and converted into common shares
during the year.

The reconciliation of basic and diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding for the three years ended December 31, 2002, follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Weighted average shares – Basic 24,424 24,643 25,461

Effect of shares applicable to 
stock option plans 350 255 307

Effect of shares applicable to 
nonqualified savings plan 67 65 49

Weighted average shares – Diluted 24,841 24,963 25,817

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued
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Recent accounting pronouncements • The FASB recently issued the follow-
ing pronouncements that may affect the accounting and financial reporting of
the Company:

• SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal

Activities” (“SFAS 146”);

• SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and

Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123” (“SFAS 148”); and 

• FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure

Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of

Others” (“FIN 45”).

SFAS 146 was issued in June 2002 and addresses accounting for costs 
associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force
No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other

Costs to Exit an Activity” (“EITF 94-3”).  Generally, SFAS 146 requires that a lia-
bility for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity, including contract termi-
nation costs, employee termination benefits and other associated costs, be recog-
nized when the liability is incurred.  Under EITF 94-3, a liability was recognized at
the date of an entity’s commitment to exit the plan.  SFAS 146 is effective for dis-
posal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, and is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of oper-
ations.

SFAS 148 was issued in December 2002.  This Statement amends SFAS 123
to provide alternative methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes
to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensa-
tion.  It also amends the disclosure provisions of that Statement to require promi-
nent disclosure about the effects on reported net income of an entity’s accounting
policy decisions with respect to stock-based employee compensation.  Finally, this
Statement amends APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” (“APB 28”)
to require disclosure about those effects in interim financial reports.  The
Company currently accounts for its stock-based employee compensation plans in
accordance with APB 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and has adopt-
ed the amended disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 for the year ended December
31, 2002, (see Note 15) and will adopt the amended disclosure requirements of
APB 28 for the first quarter of 2003.

FIN 45 was issued in November 2002 and serves as an interpretation of
FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No.
34.  This interpretation significantly changes current practice in the accounting
for, and disclosure of, guarantees.  Most guarantees are to be recognized and initial-

ly measured at fair value, which is a change from current practice.  In addition,
guarantors will be required to make significant new disclosures, even when the
likelihood of the guarantor making payments under the guarantee is remote.  In
general, FIN 45 applies to contracts or indemnification agreements that contin-
gently require the guarantor to make payments to the guaranteed party based on
changes in an underlying condition that is related to an asset, liability or an equity
security of the guaranteed party.  The Interpretation’s disclosure requirements are
effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after
December 15, 2002, while the initial recognition and initial measurement provi-
sions are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002.  The Company adopted the disclosure requirements in 2002
(see Note 19) and does not currently anticipate a material impact from the recog-
nition and initial measurement provisions of this pronouncement.  

Reclassifications • Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements
for 2001 and 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation format
adopted in 2002.  These reclassifications have no effect on net income or stock-
holders’ equity previously reported.

3.  Discontinued Operations
In September 2001, the Company adopted a formal plan to exit the rent-to-own
business (the “Plan”) in order to focus on its core business of lending activities.
The Company’s subsidiary, Rent-A-Tire, Inc. (“Rent-A-Tire”), offered new tires
and wheels under a rent-to-own format to customers seeking an alternative to a
direct purchase.  The Company closed 21 Rent-A-Tire operating locations and
held the remaining 22 locations for sale.  In conjunction with the Plan, a pre-tax
charge of $10,961,000 ($7,553,000 after income tax benefit) was recorded in the
quarter ended September 30, 2001, to establish a reserve for the estimated loss on
disposal of the rental business segment.  This charge included a provision of
$4,472,000 for operating losses subsequent to September 1, 2001, the effective
date of the Plan, and a provision of $6,489,000 for the estimated loss on the sale
of remaining assets.  

On June 14, 2002, the Company sold the assets of 22 Rent-A-Tire stores 
for proceeds of approximately $3,000,000 in cash.  During 2002, the Company
recorded a $1,214,000 ($800,000 after income tax) reduction of the original 
provision for estimated loss, primarily due to a decrease in the Company’s expected
future operating lease obligations (net of sublease income) for closed stores and
proceeds from the sale of assets in excess of the original estimate.  Activity in the
reserve for disposal of discontinued operations and the related reserve for inventory
valuation since inception and the remaining balance as of December 31, 2002, is
presented below (in thousands):

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued

Reserve for Disposal of Discontinued Operations

Reserve for Long-Lived Facility Phase-out Loss on
Inventory Asset Obligation Workforce Period Operating Sale of
Valuation Write-Down Costs Reduction Losses (Income) Assets Total

Reserve at inception $ 712 $ 1,590 $ 2,194 $ 134 $ (158) $ 6,489 $ 10,249

Cash expenditures, net — — (150) (109) (196) (50) (505)

Non-cash write-offs/reductions (572) (1,590) — — (201) — (1,791)

Reserve at December 31, 2001 140 — 2,044 25 (555) 6,439 7,953

Cash proceeds (expenditures), net — — (406) (51) (43) 2,786 2,286

Non-cash write-offs/reductions (140) — — — (188) (8,214) (8,402)

Adjustments — — (1,015) 26 786 (1,011) (1,214)

Balance at December 31, 2002 $ — $ — $ 623 $ — $ — $ — $ 623
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The Company guaranteed obligations under certain operating leases for the
premises related to the 22 Rent-A-Tire stores included in the asset sale agree-
ment.  In the event the buyer is unable to perform under the operating leases,
the Company’s maximum aggregate contingent obligation under these guaran-
tees was approximately $1,328,000 at December 31, 2002.  This amount will be
reduced dollar-for-dollar by future amounts paid on these operating leases by the
buyer.  In the event that the buyer fails to perform and the Company is required
to make payments under these leases, the Company will seek to mitigate its loss-
es by subleasing the properties.

Pursuant to APB Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the Results of Operations—

Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary,

Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” the consolidated
financial statements of the Company have been reclassified to reflect the dispos-
al of the rental business segment.  Accordingly, the revenues, costs and expenses,
assets and cash flows of Rent-A-Tire have been segregated in the consolidated
balance sheets, consolidated statements of operations and consolidated state-
ments of cash flows.  The net operating results, net assets and net cash flows of
this business segment have been reported as “discontinued operations” in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.  The loss from discontinued
operations does not include interest expense since debt was not assumed by the
buyer. 

Operating results for the discontinued rental business for the years ended
December 31 are summarized below (dollars in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Revenue $ — $ 19,102 $ 17,354
Loss before income taxes — (16,651) (3,708)
Income tax benefit — (5,573) (1,277)

Loss from discontinued operations — (11,078) (2,431)
Gain (loss) on disposal of rental business 
(net of income tax) 800 (7,553) —

Gain (loss) from discontinued 
operations, net of tax $ 800 $ (18,631) $ (2,431)

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations 
per share—Diluted $ 0.03 $ (0.75) $ (0.09)

Continuing losses associated with the rental business segment triggered an
evaluation of Rent-A-Tire’s long-lived asset recoverability during the third quar-
ter of 2001.  As a result, a non-cash charge of  $13,716,000 ($9,153,000 after
income tax benefit) to write down the carrying value of a portion of Rent-A-
Tire’s property and equipment and goodwill to estimated fair value, based upon
discounted future cash flows, was included in loss before income taxes reflected
in the table above for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Net current assets of discontinued operations, consisting primarily of mer-
chandise on rent and on hand, was $3,008,000 at December 31, 2001.  Net non-
current assets of discontinued operations, consisting primarily of property and
equipment and goodwill, was $5,598,000 at December 31, 2001. 

In a series of transactions effective February 1, 1998, the Company
increased its ownership interest in Rent-A-Tire from 49% to 99.9% and began
consolidating Rent-A-Tire’s assets and results of operations in the Company’s
financial statements.  At that time, the sellers were granted an option, exercis-
able upon sixty days written notice, to repurchase 9.9% of Rent-A-Tire for a
nominal amount.  In October 2001, the sellers exercised their options.

4.  Investment in innoVentry
In March 1999, Wells Fargo Cash Centers, Inc. (“Cash Centers”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”), contributed

$20,975,000 of cash and operating assets valued at $6,025,000 to innoVentry
and received newly issued shares of innoVentry’s Series A preferred stock repre-
senting 45% of innoVentry’s voting interest.  Wells Fargo also agreed to provide
innoVentry a revolving credit facility, equipment lease financing and cash for
use in its check cashing machines.  The Company exchanged all of innoVentry’s
then outstanding common stock for newly issued shares of Series A preferred
stock representing 45% of innoVentry’s voting interest and immediately assigned
10% of its shares to the former owners of innoVentry’s predecessor in considera-
tion for the termination of certain option rights.  Additionally, certain members
of innoVentry’s newly constituted management subscribed for newly issued
shares of common stock of innoVentry, representing the remaining 10% of its
voting interest.  Following the transactions, innoVentry was deconsolidated and
the Company began using the equity method of accounting for its investment
and its share of the results of innoVentry’s operations after March 9, 1999.  In
conjunction with these transactions, innoVentry issued a $2,900,000 note
payable to the Company bearing interest at 7%.    

In October 1999, the Company, Cash Centers and a third party each pur-
chased $10,000,000 of innoVentry’s newly issued convertible Series B voting
preferred stock.  After the issuance of Series A and B preferred stock and other
common stock sold by innoVentry in 1999 and 2000, the Company’s voting
interest at December 31, 2000, was 37.9%.  The Company recognized a pre-tax
gain of $136,000 during 2000, as a result of issuances of innoVentry preferred
and common stock.

Summarized financial information for innoVentry at December 31, 2000,
and for the year then ended follows (in thousands):

2000

Total current assets $ 19,810
Property, equipment, computer software  

and leasehold improvements, net 67,140
Non-current assets 4,484

Total assets $ 91,434

Total current liabilities $ 145,066
Non-current liabilities 31,365
Total stockholders’ deficit (84,997)

Total liabilities and deficit $ 91,434

Total net revenue $ 16,574
Expenses including net interest expense (140,364)
Income tax expense (21)

Net loss $(123,811)

innoVentry sold $115.7 million of newly issued shares of senior convertible
Series C voting preferred stock in a private placement completed as of February
2, 2001.  The Company participated in the placement by canceling its $2.9 mil-
lion note receivable from innoVentry plus accrued interest of $0.4 million in
exchange for 2,269,066 shares of the Series C preferred stock.  Upon completion
of the transactions, the Company owned 19.3% of the ownership and voting
interest in innoVentry and began using the cost method of accounting for its
investment.

In September 2001, innoVentry announced a plan to cease business opera-
tions, sell all of its assets and pay the proceeds received to innoVentry’s creditors.
To the Company’s knowledge, no proceeds were available for payment to
innoVentry’s shareholders.  The Company’s investment in and advances to
innoVentry were written down to zero during fiscal 2000.  innoVentry’s decision
to cease operations had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial posi-
tion or results of operations.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued
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5.  Small Consumer Cash Advances and 
Allowance for Losses

Cash advances are generally offered for a term of 7 to 45 days, depending on the
customer’s next payday.  In addition to the cash advances originated by the
Company in some of its locations, cash advances are offered in other locations by
a third-party financial institution (the “Bank”).  Balances associated with the
Company’s small consumer cash advance portfolio are included in “Other receiv-
ables and prepaid expenses” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The balances outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows (in
thousands):

2002 2001

Originated by the Company
Active cash advances and 

fees outstanding $1,311 $ 777
Cash advances and fees in collection 346 252

Total originated by the Company 1,657 1,029

Originated by Bank
Active cash advances and 

fees outstanding 7,754 4,109
Cash advances and fees in collection 2,728 1,625

Total originated by the Bank 10,482 5,734

Combined gross portfolio 12,139 6,763
Less: Elimination of cash advances

and fees owned by Bank 7,754 4,109
Less: Discount on cash advances

and fees assigned by Bank 427 248

Company cash advances and fees outstanding 3,958 2,406
Less: Allowances for losses 1,748 711

Net cash advances and fees outstanding $2,210 $1,695

Under the terms of the August 2001 amendment to the Company’s agree-
ment with the Bank, the Bank assigns each cash advance that remains unpaid
after its maturity date to the Company at a discount from the amount owed by the
borrower, and the Company undertakes the collection activity on the account.
One of the reasons for this practice is to benefit from the use of the Company’s
collections resources and proficiency.  As a result, losses on cash advances assigned
to the Company that prove uncollectible are the sole responsibility of the
Company.  Therefore, when evaluating the Company’s overall allowance for losses,
management includes estimates for these cash advance losses, while active in the
Bank’s portfolio, at a level projected to be adequate to absorb credit losses inherent
in the outstanding portfolio.  Cash advances assigned to the Company by the
Bank were $23,806,000 and $5,520,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

During January of 2003, the Company announced its intent to change third-
party providers of this product, and the Bank announced that it would be exiting
the small consumer cash advance business.  The new third-party providers will be
state-chartered financial institutions. The transition will occur over the first four
months of 2003. Management does not anticipate that the change in providers of
the small consumer cash advance product will have a material adverse impact on
consumers’ demand for the product, the Company’s ability to offer the product
through its lending locations, or on the Company’s financial condition. 

Changes in the allowance for losses on cash advances and fees for the years
ended December 31, follow (in thousands):

2002 2001

Balance at beginning of year $ 711 $ 243
Provision for loan losses 6,676 2,301
Charge-offs (7,691) (2,135)
Recoveries 2,052 302

Balance at end of year $1,748 $ 711

Provision for losses as a % of combined 
advances written (a) 5.4% 4.7%

Charge-offs (net of recoveries) as a % of
combined advances written (a) 4.6% 3.7%

(a) In August 2001, the Bank began assigning past due cash advance accounts, at a discount, to the Company for

collection.  As a result, the Company became responsible for charge-offs of assigned accounts.  Additionally, the

Company began providing a provision for estimated losses of cash advances originated by the Bank, while still active

in the Bank’s portfolio.  Prior to August 2001, the Company’s cash advance charge-offs and the provision for losses

related to advances originated by the Company. Comparable figures for all combined cash advances written in 2001

would be a combined 7.5% loss provision as a percent of advances written and a combined 6.3% net charge-offs as

a percent of combined advances written.

6.  Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), and its corresponding amendments under SFAS
138, on January 1, 2001.  SFAS 133 requires an entity to recognize each deriva-
tive instrument as either an asset or liability on the balance sheet, measure it at
fair value and recognize the changes in its fair value immediately in earnings
unless it qualifies as a hedge.  The Company’s only derivative instruments are
interest rate cap agreements that it designates and uses as cash flow hedges to pro-
tect against the risks associated with market fluctuations in interest rates on a
portion of its variable interest rate borrowings.  The Company performs prospec-
tive assessments of each agreement’s hedge effectiveness, as defined by SFAS 133,
at the beginning of each quarter.  The final determination of hedge effectiveness
is completed following the end of each quarter. 

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations include losses from
derivative valuation fluctuations of $177,000 and $557,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001.  The loss during 2002 was a result of adjustments to
the estimated fair value of interest rate cap agreements.  The loss during 2001
resulted from two adjustments. As of January 1, 2001, the Company adjusted the
carrying value of each of its interest rate cap agreements to fair value and recorded
a loss of $259,000 (before applicable income tax benefit of $87,000), which repre-
sented the cumulative effect of adopting the new standard. The Company also
recorded an additional loss of $298,000 during 2001 due to the determination that
the interest rate cap agreements were ineffective as hedges (as defined by SFAS
133) during 2001, and due to the decreases in the fair values of the agreements
resulting from the prevailing interest rate environment.  Prior to 2001, the cost of
these caps was amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the cap, and the
amortization was included in interest expense.

The fair values of the interest rate cap agreements as of December 31, 2002
and 2001 total zero and $173,000, respectively, and are included in “Other receiv-
ables and prepaid expenses” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Transitional disclosures • Net income and net income per share, excluding
amortization expense related to goodwill, net of applicable income tax benefits, for
the years ended December 31, were as follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts; due to rounding, per share amounts may not total): 

2002 2001 2000

Reported net income (loss) $ 19,309 $ (5,906) $ (1,730)
Add back: Goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit — 2,557 2,287

Adjusted net income (loss) 19,309 (3,349) 557

Basic net income (loss) per share:
Reported net income (loss) 0.79 (0.24) (0.07)
Add back: Goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit — 0.10 0.09

Adjusted net income (loss) 0.79 (0.14) 0.02

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Reported net income (loss) 0.78 (0.24) (0.07)
Add back: Goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit — 0.10 0.09

Adjusted net income (loss) $ 0.78 $ (0.13) $ 0.02

Acquired intangible assets • Acquired intangible assets that are subject to
amortization as of December 31, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net

Noncompetition agreements $ 1,832 $ (1,345) $ 487
Other 130 (71) 59

Total $ 1,962 $ (1,416) $ 546

Noncompetition agreements are amortized over the applicable period of the
contract. Net acquired intangible assets are included in “Other assets” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Amortization • Amortization expense for the acquired intangible assets is 
as follows (in thousands):

Actual amortization expense 
For the year ended December 31, 2002 $ 478

Estimated amortization expense 
For the years ended December 31: 

2003 $ 188
2004 84
2005 81
2006 76
2007 65

8.  Property and Equipment
Major classifications of property and equipment at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Land $ 2,244 $ 2,611
Buildings and leasehold improvements 88,145 83,497
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 51,962 47,633
Computer software 19,131 18,493

Total 161,482 152,234
Less – accumulated depreciation 94,228 83,784

Property and equipment – net $ 67,254 $ 68,450

7.  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—
Adoption of SFAS 142

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets” (“SFAS 142”).  Goodwill and other intangible assets having an indefinite
useful life acquired in business combinations completed after June 30, 2001, are
no longer subject to amortization to earnings.  Effective January 1, 2002, all good-
will and other intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are no longer
amortized to earnings.  The useful lives of other intangible assets must be
reassessed and the remaining amortization periods adjusted accordingly.  Goodwill
and other intangible assets having an indefinite useful life must be tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the assets might be impaired, using a two-step impairment assess-
ment.  The first step of the goodwill impairment test, used to identify potential
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impairment, compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill.  If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired, and the sec-
ond step of the impairment test is not necessary.  If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment
test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002.
Based on the results of the required initial and annual impairment test, 
management determined there was no impairment as of January 1, 2002, and 
June 30, 2002.

Goodwill • The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the year ended
December 31, 2002, follows (in thousands):

Goodwill

Lending

United States Foreign Total Check Cashing Consolidated

Balance as of January 1, 2002,
net of amortization of $24,224 $ 59,050 $ 12,453 $ 71,503 $ 5,183 $ 76,686 

Acquired goodwill 541 1,006 1,547 — 1,547 
Foreign translation impact — 1,600 1,600 — 1,600 

Balance as of December 31, 2002 $ 59,591 $ 15,059 $ 74,650 $ 5,183 $ 79,833
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(1.4375% at December 31, 2002) plus a margin or at the Agent’s base rate.  The
margin on the line of credit varies from 1.25% to 2.50%, depending on the
Company’s ratio of indebtedness to cash flow as defined in the agreement.  The
Company pays a fee of .375% per annum on the unused portion.  Net proceeds
received under these agreements were used to reduce existing indebtedness, and
will be utilized for general corporate purposes.  The weighted average interest rate
(including margin) on the U.S. line of credit at December 31, 2002, was 4.19%.
The Company had an interest rate cap agreement, totaling $20,000,000, that
expired in January 2003 that limited the maximum LIBOR rate to 7%, and has an
interest rate cap agreement totaling $30,000,000 that expires in February 2004 that
limits the maximum LIBOR rate to 5.5%. At December 31, 2002, $44,500,000 was
outstanding on the Company’s $90,000,000 line of credit.

The Company extended its multi-currency line of credit for one year to
April 30, 2004, and reduced the maximum amount to £15,000,000 (approxi-
mately $24,146,000 at December 31, 2002) from £20,000,000 (approximately
$32,194,000 at December 31, 2002).  The Company’s foreign subsidiaries are
co-borrowers on this multi-currency line of credit.  Funds may be drawn in
British pounds, bearing interest at the Bank’s cost of funds plus a margin of 60
basis points.  Funds up to the equivalent of £15,000,000 may be drawn in
Swedish kronor, bearing interest at the Bank’s cost of funds plus a margin of 65
basis points.  In the aggregate, the British pound and Swedish kronor drawings
may not exceed the equivalent of £15,000,000.  The Company pays a fee of
.25% per annum on the unused portion of this line of credit.  As of December
31, 2002, amounts outstanding under this line of credit were £4,550,000
(approximately $7,324,000) and SEK 38,000,000 (approximately $4,378,000).

The company extended its SEK 30,000,000 line of credit (approximately
$3,456,000 as of December 31, 2002) with a commercial bank to mature on
May 30, 2003.  Interest on this line of credit is charged at the Bank’s base fund-
ing rate plus 1%.  The Company pays a commitment fee of 0.25% per annum
on the total amount of this line of credit. There were no amounts outstanding
on this line of credit at December 31, 2002. The Company has an interest rate
cap agreement for SEK 100,000,000 (approximately $11,520,000 as of
December 31, 2002) that expires in August 2003 and limits the Stockholm
Interbank Offering rate to 5.5%. 

The weighted average interest rates on the British pound and Swedish kro-
nor borrowings at December 31, 2002, were 5.19% and 4.77%, respectively.

The credit agreements and the senior unsecured notes require the
Company to maintain certain financial ratios.  The Company is in compliance
with all covenants or other requirements set forth in its debt agreements. 

Annual maturities of long-term debt through 2007 are: 2003 -
$12,571,000; 2004 - $19,987,000; 2005 - $61,286,000; 2006 - $16,786,000; and
2007 - $16,786,000.

Cash payments for interest on long-term debt were $8,381,000,
$10,393,000 and $14,402,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net interest expense in the statement of operations includes interest
income of $562,000, $1,083,000 and $1,338,000 in 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.  Interest capitalized in connection with the restoration of the
Company’s corporate headquarters was $423,000 in 2001.

On March 28, 2000, a tornado severely damaged the Company’s corporate
headquarters in Fort Worth, Texas.  Headquarters operations were relocated to
temporary facilities.  The Company’s operating locations were not affected. The
Company owns its headquarters facility, and restoration of the building began in
the fourth quarter of 2000 and was completed in the fourth quarter of 2001.
The Company’s insurance coverage provided proceeds for repairs to the build-
ing; replacement of furniture, improvements and equipment; recovery of losses
resulting from business interruption; and recovery of other general expenses.  In
2000, the Company recognized a gain of $9,729,000 from the settlement of
insurance claims and related income tax expense of $3,405,000.

9.  Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as
follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Trade accounts payable $ 6,332 $ 12,512
Accrued taxes, other than income taxes 2,467 4,471
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 9,636 7,248
Accrued interest payable 3,027 2,096
Other accrued liabilities 2,835 1,612

Total $ 24,297 $ 27,939

10.  Long-term Debt
The Company’s long-term debt instruments and balances outstanding at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

U.S. line of credit up to $90,000 
due August 14, 2005 $ 44,500 $ —

U.S. line of credit up to $150,000
due June 30, 2003 — 100,000

Multi-currency line of credit up to £15,000 
due April 30, 2004 11,702 —

Multi-currency line of credit up to £20,000 
due April 30, 2003 — 12,562

Swedish line of credit up to SEK 30,000
due May 30, 2003 — —

8.33% senior unsecured notes due 2003 4,286 8,571
8.14% senior unsecured notes due 2007 20,000 20,000
7.10% senior unsecured notes due 2008 25,714 30,000
7.20% senior unsecured notes due 2009 42,500 —
Capital leases and other obligations payable — 649

148,702 171,782
Less current portion 12,571 9,020

Total long-term debt $ 136,131 $ 162,762

In 2002, the Company issued $42,500,000 of 7.20% senior unsecured notes,
due in August 2009.  The notes are payable in five equal annual payments begin-
ning in August 2005.  The Company also refinanced its U.S. line of credit with a
$90,000,000 senior unsecured revolving line of credit maturing in August 2005.
Interest on the line of credit is charged, at the Company’s option, at either LIBOR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued
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11.  Income Taxes
The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Deferred tax assets:
Provision for valuation of merchandise

held for disposition $ 275 $ 327
Tax over book accrual of finance and 

service charges 3,531 3,863
Cash advance loss provision 612 249
Reserve for loss from disposal of 

discontinued operations 218 2,429
Property and equipment — 1,131
Deferred compensation 955 784
Net capital losses 8,200 8,842
Other 1,237 1,109

Total deferred tax assets 15,028 18,734
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (7,691) (7,628) 

Deferred tax assets, net $ 7,337 $ 11,106

Deferred tax liabilities:
Amortization of acquired intangibles $ 3,243 $ 933
Deferred installment gain 493 504
Foreign tax reserves 1,506 1,149
Property and equipment 372 —
Other 716 580

Total deferred tax liabilities 6,330 3,166

Net deferred tax assets $ 1,007 $ 7,940

Balance sheet classification:
Current deferred tax assets $ 5,392 $ 7,795
Non-current deferred tax assets — 1,846
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (4,385) (1,701) 

Net deferred tax assets $ 1,007 $ 7,940

The components of the provision for income taxes and the income to which
it relates for the years ended December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Income from continuing operations 
before income taxes:

United States entities $ 19,313 $ 12,506 $ 3,606
Foreign entities 9,589 7,923 7,226

$ 28,902 $ 20,429 $ 10,832

Current provision:
Federal $ 5,052 $ 4,350 $ 4,597
Foreign 2,897 2,417 2,028
State and local 568 399 347

$ 8,517 $ 7,166 $ 6,972

Deferred provision (benefit):
Federal $ 1,739 $ 515 $ 2,949
Foreign 100 62 265
State and local 37 (39) (55)

$ 1,876 $ 538 $ 3,159

Total provision $ 10,393 $ 7,704 $ 10,131

The effective tax rate on income from continuing operations differs from
the federal statutory rate of 35% for the following reasons (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Tax provision computed at the 
statutory federal income tax rate $ 10,116 $ 7,150 $ 3,791

Non-deductible amortization of 
intangible assets — 597 642

Foreign tax rate difference (547) (463) (439)
State and local income taxes,

net of federal tax benefit 394 234 190
Valuation allowance — (1) 5,457
Other 430 187 490 

Total provision $ 10,393 $ 7,704 $ 10,131

Effective tax rate 36.0% 37.7% 93.5%

As of December 31, 2002, the Company has net capital loss carryovers of
$23,429,000, principally related to its investment in innoVentry stock (see Note
4).  These losses may only be used to offset net capital gains.  Any unused losses
expire in 2006 through 2007.  The deferred tax valuation allowances at December
31, 2002 and 2001, have been provided to reduce deferred tax benefits of capital
losses that the Company does not expect to realize.  During 2001, the Company
re-evaluated the potential for realization of the Company’s deferred tax assets
related to the 1998 acquisition of Doc Holliday’s Pawnbrokers and Jewellers, Inc.
(“Doc Holliday’s”).  As a result, the $290,000 valuation allowance related to the
Doc Holliday’s pre-acquisition deductible temporary differences was eliminated
and the resulting tax benefit was applied to reduce goodwill attributable to the
Doc Holliday’s acquisition.  A similar reduction of goodwill of $83,000 occurred in
2000.  Upon adoption of SFAS 142 (see Note 7) $406,000 of deferred tax assets
were eliminated through a corresponding increase in goodwill.

Domestic income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries to the extent that it is the Company’s intent to reinvest these
earnings overseas indefinitely.  As of December 31, 2002, the Company estimates
that it would be subject to U.S. income taxes (net of foreign tax credits) of
approximately $2,800,000 upon distribution of accumulated earnings of all foreign
subsidiaries.

Net cash payments for income taxes were $3,277,000 and $162,000 in 2002
and 2001, respectively, while net cash income tax refunds of $390,000 were
received in 2000.

12.  Employee Benefit Plans
The Cash America International, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan is open to substan-
tially all domestic employees who meet specific length of employment and age
requirements.  The Cash America International, Inc. Nonqualified Savings Plan
is available to certain members of management.  Participants may contribute up
to 50% of their earnings to these plans.  The Company makes matching cash
contributions of 50% of each participant’s contributions, based on participant
contributions of up to 5% of compensation.  Company contributions vest at the
rate of 20% each year after one year of service; thus a participant is 100% vested
after five years of service.  The Company provides benefits under separate retire-
ment plans for eligible employees in foreign countries.

Total Company contributions to employee benefit plans were $743,000,
$732,000 and $674,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Prices Shares Prices Shares Prices

Outstanding at beginning of year 3,997 $ 8.16 3,994 $ 8.32 3,729 $ 7.59
Granted 428 7.99 155 6.18 977 10.11
Exercised 7 5.70 7 9.03 607 6.42
Forfeited 44 9.44 145 10.45 103 10.23
Expired — — — — 2 7.13

Outstanding at end of year 4,374 $ 8.13 3,997 $ 8.16 3,994 $ 8.32

Exercisable at end of year 2,898 $ 7.54 2,814 $ 7.36 2,618 $ 7.13

Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 6.22 $ 4.88 $ 6.32

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following weighted 
average assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Expected term (years) 8.2 8.0 7.3
Risk-free interest rate 5.23% 5.12% 6.70%
Expected dividend yield 0.63% 0.81% 0.42%
Expected volatility 56.7% 58.0% 49.2%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued

13.  Stockholders’ Equity
On July 25, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized management to
purchase up to one million shares of its common stock in the open market and
terminated the open market purchase authorization established in 2000.  Under
the 2002 authorization, the Company purchased 109,000 shares for an aggregate
amount of $893,000.  Under the 2000 authorization, the Company purchased
176,700 shares for an aggregate amount of $1,327,000 during 2002, 61,200 shares
for an aggregate amount of $451,000 during 2001 and 700,900 shares for an
aggregate amount of $3,254,000 during 2000.  Under prior authorizations, the
Company purchased 415,100 shares for an aggregate amount of $2,841,000 
during 2000.  Additional purchases may be made from time to time in the 
open market.

Transactions related to the Nonqualified Savings Plan consisted of net distri-
butions of 3,649 shares for $58,000 during 2002 and net purchases of 10,858 shares
for $36,000 and 13,223 shares for $75,000 during 2001 and 2000, respectively.  

The Company received 21,800 shares of its common stock valued at
$200,000 and 15,442 shares of its common stock valued at $94,000 during 2002
and 2001, respectively, as partial payment for shares issued under stock 
option plans.

The Board of Directors adopted an officer stock loan program (the
“Program”) in 1994 and modified it in 1996, 2001 and 2002.  The amendment in
2002 provided that no further advances would be made to existing participants
and closed the plan to new participants.  Prior to the 2002 amendment, Program
participants utilized loan proceeds to acquire and hold the Company’s and affili-
ates’ common stock by means of stock option exercises or otherwise.  Common
stock held as a result of the loan is pledged to the Company in support of the
obligation.  Interest accrues at 6% per annum.  The entire unpaid balance of prin-
cipal and interest on these loans is due and payable on July 24, 2007.  Amounts
due under the Program are reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

14.  Stock Purchase Rights
In August 1997, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one
Common Stock Purchase Right (the “Rights”) for each outstanding share of its
common stock.  The Rights become exercisable in the event a person or group
acquires 15% or more of the Company’s common stock or announces a tender
offer, the consummation of which would result in ownership by a person or group
of 15% or more of the common stock.  If any person becomes a 15% or more
shareholder of the Company, each Right (subject to certain limits) will entitle its
holder (other than such person or members of such group) to purchase, for
$37.00, the number of shares of the Company’s common stock determined by
dividing $74.00 by the then current market price of the common stock.  The
Rights will expire on August 5, 2007.

15.  Stock Options
Under various plans (the “Plans”) it sponsors, the Company is authorized to issue
8,300,000 shares of Common Stock pursuant to “Awards” granted as incentive
stock options (intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended) and nonqualified stock options.  Stock options grant-
ed under the Plans have contractual terms of 5 to 15 years and have an exercise
price equal to or greater than the fair market value of the stock at grant date.
Stock options granted vest over periods ranging from 1 to 7 years.  However, the
7-year vesting periods and certain of the 4-year and 5-year vesting periods accel-
erate if specified share price appreciation criteria are met.  No such accelerated
vesting of stock options occurred in 2002, 2001 or 2000.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity for the three years end-
ing December 31, 2002, is as follows (shares in thousands):
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Stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2002, are summarized below (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Weighted Average Years Weighted

Range of Number Average of Remaining Number Average Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Life Exercisable Price

$5.63 to  $7.00 2,107 $ 6.30 2.2 1,987 $ 6.33
$7.01 to $10.81 2,091 9.49 6.0 735 9.28

$10.82 to $16.69 176 13.91 5.8 176 13.91

$ 5.63 to $16.69 4,374 $ 8.13 4.1 2,898 $ 7.54

The Company applies the intrinsic value based method of accounting for the Plans and, accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized.  If compensa-
tion costs for the Company’s stock options had been determined on the fair value based method of accounting using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, the
Company’s net income (loss) and related amounts per share, basic and diluted, for each of the years ended December 31 would have been reported as follows (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss)—as reported $ 19,309 $ (5,906) $ (1,730)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation 

expense determined under fair value based 
method for all awards1, net of related tax effects 1,379 1,037 1,800

Net income (loss)—pro forma $ 17,930 $ (6,943) $ (3,530)
Net income (loss) per share

Basic:
As reported $ 0.79 $ (0.24) $ (0.07)
Pro forma 0.73 (0.28) (0.14)

Diluted:
As reported 0.78 (0.24) (0.07)
Pro forma 0.72 (0.28) (0.14)

1 All awards refers to awards granted, modified, or settled in fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 1994 – that is, awards for which the fair value was required to be 

measured under SFAS 123.

16.  Operating Segment Information
The Company has two reportable operating segments in the lending industry and one in the check cashing industry.  The United States and foreign lending segments
offer secured non-recourse pawn loans and small consumer cash advances to individuals.  In the United States segment, pawn loan terms are generally for one month
with provisions for renewals and extensions, and the loans average approximately 50 days in length.  The loan collateral includes a wide variety of personal property
items.  However, in the foreign segment, loan terms are 180 days or less, the loan amounts are generally larger and the collateral is predominately jewelry.  In the
United States and foreign lending segment, small consumer cash advances have terms of 45 days or less and average approximately 17 days in length.  The check
cashing segment provides check cashing services to individuals through franchised and company-owned Mr. Payroll check cashing centers.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2.  Management of the Company evaluates performance based on income from
operations before net interest expense, other miscellaneous items of income or expense and the provision for income taxes.  There are no sales between operating 
segments.

While the United States and foreign lending segments offer the same services, each is managed separately due to the different operational strategies required.
The check cashing operation offers different services and products, thus requiring its own technical, marketing and operational strategy.

As described in Note 3, the Company reclassified the results of operations of Rent-A-Tire as discontinued operations.  This business was previously reported as a
separate operating segment.  The segment data included below has been restated to exclude amounts related to Rent-A-Tire.
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Information concerning the segments is set forth below (in thousands):  

Lending

United States Foreign Total Check Cashing Consolidated

2002

Total revenue $ 346,938 $ 37,342 $ 384,280 $ 3,563 $ 387,843  

Depreciation and amortization 11,794 2,472 14,266 693 14,959 

Income from operations 27,052 10,168 37,220 820 38,040 

Total assets at December 31 279,208 89,532 368,740 7,738 376,478 

Expenditures for property and equipment 8,740 2,224 10,964 363 11,327 

2001

Total revenue $ 320,693 $ 31,841 $ 352,534 $ 3,395 $ 355,929 
Depreciation and amortization 13,644 2,105 15,749 880 16,629 
Income from operations 21,384 8,675 30,059 546 30,605
Total assets at December 31 292,426 74,784 367,210 7,074 374,284 
Expenditures for property and equipment 29,786 1,947 31,733 96 31,829

2000

Total revenue $ 310,881 $ 32,302 $ 343,183 $ 3,177 $ 346,360 
Depreciation and amortization 13,701 1,949 15,650 708 16,358 
Income from operations 20,733 8,615 29,348 367 29,715 
Equity in loss of unconsolidated subsidiary — — — (15,653) (15,653)
Total assets at December 31 265,423 76,251 341,674 12,255 353,929 
Expenditures for property and equipment 13,895 1,762 15,657 562 16,219 

Total assets of discontinued operations were $8,606,000, and $24,304,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The geographic distribution of property and equipment at December 31, follows (in thousands):

United States Foreign Consolidated

2002 $ 57,799 $ 9,455 $ 67,254 

2001 60,366 8,084 68,450
2000 41,528 8,069 49,597 

17.  Related Party Transactions
In December 1999, the Company sold three lending units, including certain real estate, for $4,520,000 to Ace Pawn, Inc. (“Ace”) whose sole stockholder, J.D. Credit,
Inc. (“J.D. Credit”), is controlled by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.  The price was determined by independent appraisal and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company.  A gain of $2,224,000 was recognized on the transaction.  The Company received promissory notes from Ace that were collateral-
ized by all of its assets.  In addition, J.D. Credit pledged the common stock of Ace and the Chairman of the Board provided a personal guaranty for repayment of the
notes.  The notes accrued interest at 10% per annum and required quarterly principal and interest payments with a final balloon payment due in December 2002.  Ace
paid off the notes in full on January 13, 2003. 

The Company has the right of first refusal in the event of a proposed resale of the lending units.  Amounts due on the notes were $2,587,000 and $3,097,000 as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and are included in “Other assets” in the accompanying balance sheet.  The Company recorded interest income from the
notes of $285,000, $313,000 and $378,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The three lending units were converted to Company franchise units, and the Company continued to manage the units pursuant to a management agreement for a
brief interim period immediately following the closing of the transaction.  Royalties recorded by the Company for these units were $83,000, $79,000 and $79,000 for
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.  The Company recorded management fee income of $60,000 for 2000.

18.  Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents bear interest at market rates and have maturities less than 90 days.  Pawn loans have relatively short maturity periods depending on local
regulations, generally 90 days or less in the United States and 180 days or less in the United Kingdom and Sweden.  Small consumer cash advances have maturity peri-
ods of 45 days or less.  Finance and service charge rates are determined by regulations and bear no valuation relationship to capital markets’ interest rate movements.
Generally, pawn loans may only be resold to a licensed pawnbroker.  The Company’s interest rate cap agreements are evaluated pursuant to the terms of the agreements
and settled in specific three-month intervals.  The fair values of the interest rate caps are based on quoted market prices for interest rate caps currently available with
similar terms.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued
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19.  Commitments and Contingencies
Leases •  The Company leases certain of its facilities under operating leases
with terms ranging from 3 to 15 years, with certain rights to extend for addition-
al periods.  Future minimum rentals due under non-cancelable leases for contin-
uing operations are as follows for each of the years ending December 31 (in
thousands):

2003 $ 19,329
2004 15,190
2005 10,183
2006 7,367
2007 4,672
Thereafter 15,059

Total $ 71,800

Rent expense for continuing operations was $23,067,000, $22,188,000 and
$21,836,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Guarantees •  The Company guaranteed obligations under certain operating
leases for the premises related to the 22 Rent-A-Tire stores included in the asset
sale agreement.  In the event the buyer is unable to perform under the operating
leases, the Company’s maximum aggregate contingent obligation under these guar-
antees was approximately $1,328,000 at December 31, 2002.  This amount will be
reduced dollar-for-dollar by future amounts paid on these operating leases by the
buyer.  In the event that the buyer fails to perform and the Company is required to
make payments under these leases, the Company will seek to mitigate its losses by
subleasing the properties. See Note 3.

Litigation •  The Company is party to a number of lawsuits arising in the nor-
mal course of business.  In the opinion of management, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial posi-
tion, results of operations or liquidity.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued

The Company’s bank credit facilities bear interest at rates that are frequently adjusted on the basis of market rate changes.  The fair values of the remaining
long-term debt instruments are estimated based on market values for debt issues with similar characteristics or rates currently available for debt with similar terms.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,951 $ 3,951 $ 6,394 $ 6,394
Pawn loans 127,388 127,388 116,590 116,590
Small consumer cash advances, net 2,210 2,210 1,695 1,695
Notes receivable 2,587 2,587 3,097 3,912
Interest rate caps — — 173 173

Financial liabilities:
Bank lines of credit 56,202 56,202 112,562 112,562
Senior unsecured notes 92,500 96,518 58,571 61,703
Capital lease obligations and other notes — — 649 646
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Continued

20.   Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

The Company’s operations are subject to seasonal fluctuations.  Revenue tends to be highest during the first and fourth calendar quarters.

First Second Third Fourth
2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Total revenue $ 100,720 $ 90,987 $ 89,956 $ 106,180  
Costs of revenue 43,881 39,185 34,556 43,089 
Income from continuing operations 5,203 2,682 3,182 7,442 
Gain from discontinued operations — 800 — —
Net income 5,203 3,482 3,182 7,442 
Diluted income from continuing operations per share 0.21 0.11 0.13 0.30 
Diluted gain from discontinued operations per share — 0.03 — — 
Diluted net income per share 0.21 0.14 0.13 0.30 
Diluted weighted average shares 24,862 24,916 24,773 24,818

2001

Total revenue $ 93,556 $ 80,426 $ 82,604 $ 99,343 
Costs of revenue 41,428 33,274 33,392 42,897 
Income from continuing operations 3,233 1,568 1,975 5,949 
Loss from discontinued operations (a) (558) (680) (17,393) —
Net income (loss) 2,675 888 (15,418) 5,949
Diluted income from continuing operations per share 0.13 0.06 0.08 0.24 
Diluted loss from discontinued operations per share (0.02) (0.03) (0.69) — 
Diluted net income (loss) per share 0.11 0.04 (0.61) 0.24 
Diluted weighted average shares 24,719 24,944 25,152 25,044

(a) In the 2001 Third Quarter, the Company announced plans to exit the rent-to-own business and presented that business as a discontinued operation.  
All prior periods presented have been restated.
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cash America International, Inc.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of operations, cash flows and stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cash America
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2002, and December 31, 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.  We did not audit the financial statements of innoVentry Corp. as of December 31, 2000, and for the year
then ended, the investment and loss in which is reflected in the accompanying financial statements using the equity method of accounting (see
Note 4).  The Company’s proportionate share of innoVentry Corp.’s net assets and advances from the Company was zero dollars as of December
31, 2000, and reflects total operating losses of $15,653,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.  Those statements were audited by other audi-
tors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for innoVentry
Corp., is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 and changed its method of accounting for Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets during 2002.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Fort Worth, Texas

January 23, 2003



Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
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2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

OPERATIONS — years ended December 31 (a)
Total revenue $ 387,843 $ 355,929 $ 346,360 $ 362,895 $ 337,635
Income from operations 38,040 30,605 29,715 34,746 34,574 

Income from continuing operations 
before income taxes (b) 28,902 20,429 10,832  13,264 20,937

Income from continuing operations (b) $ 18,509 $ 12,725 $ 701 $ 3,947 $ 13,004 

Income from continuing operations per share:
Basic $ 0.76 $ 0.52 $ 0.03 $ 0.16 $ 0.52 
Diluted $ 0.75 $ 0.51 $ 0.03 $ 0.15 $ 0.50 

Dividends per share $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05

Weighted average shares:
Basic 24,424 24,643 25,461 25,346 24,829
Diluted 24,841 24,963 25,817 26,229 26,226 

FINANCIAL POSITION — at December 31(a)
Pawn loans $ 127,388 $ 116,590 $ 117,982 $ 125,349 $ 128,637
Merchandise held for disposition, net 54,444 63,392 58,817 64,419 65,417 
Working capital 179,525 174,571 190,311 208,419 213,612 
Total assets 376,478 382,890 378,233 417,623 410,823 
Total debt 148,702 171,782 170,464 202,366 193,974 
Stockholders’ equity 192,335 168,431 178,458 186,940 187,444 
Current ratio 5.1x 4.5x 6.9x 7.5x 7.9x 
Debt to equity ratio 77.3% 102.0% 95.5% 108.3% 103.5%

OWNED AND FRANCHISED LOCATIONS — at December 31
Lending operations 468 473 479 477 469 
Check cashing operations 135 134 132 137 137 

(a) In September 2001, the Company announced plans to exit the rent-to-own business. The amounts for the years 1998 through 2001 have been restated to reflect the rent-to-own busi-
ness as discontinued operations.

(b) See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition” for amounts related to gains from disposals of assets, equity in losses of 
unconsolidated subsidiaries and other items for 2000.

Common Stock Data

The New York Stock Exchange is the principal exchange on which Cash America International, Inc. common stock is traded.  There were 664 stockholders of
record (not including individual participants in security listings) as of February 5, 2003.  The high and low sales prices of common stock as quoted on the composite
tape of the New York Stock Exchange and cash dividends per share during 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

High $ 9.05 $ 10.33 $ 9.15 $ 9.87  
Low 6.92 7.55 6.50 7.32 
Close 8.80 9.20 8.19 9.52 

Cash dividend per share .011/4 .011/4 .011/4 .011/4

2001

High $ 7.13 $ 8.66 $ 10.50 $ 9.66  
Low 4.31 5.85 7.27 7.00 
Close 6.10 8.50 9.09 8.50 

Cash dividend per share .011/4 .011/4 .011/4 .011/4
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Carl P. Motheral
1926 – 2003

Friend, advisor and
long-time member
of the Cash America
family, Mr. Motheral
passed away in early
2003.  Mr. Motheral
was essential in the
formation and

founding of Cash America through his inspira-
tion and financial support.  Over the following
eighteen years, he continued to contribute his
time and wisdom as a member of the Board of
Directors.  His special brand of personality,
thoughtfulness and direct involvement will be
deeply missed.  We are grateful for his contri-
butions and dedicate this annual report, 
representing a record year for Cash America, 
to his lasting memory.

Board of Directors
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